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2020 31

(Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited)

KY1-1104
309GT
(P.0. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)

03 6775 1629

NB
(Nikko AM Offshore Funds — NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund)

10 1,077

1,000

2020 30 UFJ
107.74
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10 1,077
1,000
3.3
10 0.001 100 0.01
0.001 10,000
2020 2021 31

12 24
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UFJ
100-0005
https://www._pb.mufg.jp/

Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited

UFJ
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Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited
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(Cayman) Limited
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2017 18
LLC
Neuberger Berman Investment
Advisers LLC

)
2020 2003 26

)
2020

() 2020
2020 480,000 5,172
107.74 480,000 107.74
1,000,000 1,000,000 774
)
2003 26
2009 27

)
2020

EC2Y 5AD 480,000 100.00

Nikko AM Global Holdings (1 London Wall, London EC2Y 5AD, United
Limited Kingdom)

2020
2020

1925
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TOPIX
MSCI-KOKUSAI
MSCI Inc.
MSCI Inc.
MSCI
MSCI Inc.
MSCI Inc.
NOMURA-BPI
FTSE
FTSE Fixed IncomeLLC FTSE Fixed Income LLC
FTSE Fixed Income LLC
JP GBI-EM
JP. Morgan SecuritiesLLC
JP. Morgan SecuritiesLLC
3.3
0.015
15,000
0.65 0.30 0.35
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0.08 2.5
0.07 2.5
0.06

80,000

0.05

0.65

180,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500
2020 29
15,484
627,790
177,345

48,292
627,789

XV
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2020
23,288,644.42 31.72
12,578,070.73 17.13
11,992,965.62 16.33
8,560,537.46 11.66
4,577,010.49 6.23
4,117,082.45 5.61
3,620,420.50 4.93
2,096,921.01 2.86
1,782,360.27 2.43
1,142,853.77 1.56
490,850.70 0.67
110,259.63 0.15
74,357,977.05 101.27
-931,416.66 -1.27
73,426,560.39
100.00
7,910,977,616
2020
SSE PLC V/R 2077
4.75 6,930,000 98.11| 6,799,173.98|100.98| 6,997,567.50 .53
09/16/77 16
NGG FINANCE V/R 2073
5.625 4,784,000 | 157.48| 7,533,894.33| 138.39| 6,620,443.47 .02
06/18/73/GBP/ 18
BAYER AG V/R 2075
2.375 4,425,000 | 110.84| 4,904,472.84|111.19| 4,920,040.48 .70
04/02/75/EUR/
BRITISH TELE V/R 2080
1.874 3,472,000 109.15| 3,789,861.53|103.14| 3,581,098.30 .88
08/18/80/EUR/ 18
VOLKSWAGEN INT 2169
3.875 3,200,000 117.06 | 3,746,058.48|111.76| 3,576,356.92 .87
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 14
VODAFONE GRO V/R 2079
3.1 3,000,000 117.01| 3,510,443.10|112.31| 3,369,449.94 .59
01/03/79/EUR/
ELIA GROUP SA/ 2168
2.75 2,800,000 112.35| 3,145,838.11|113.88| 3,188,627.29 .34
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 12
ENBRIDGE INC V/R 2077
5.5 3,309,000| 101.65| 3,363,619.80| 95.50| 3,160,095.00 .30
07/15/77 15
ELECTRICITE DE 2168
6 2,200,000 | 148.79| 3,273,431.41|130.31| 2,866,843.49 .90
V/R /PERP//GBP/ 29
VOLKSWAGEN INT 2168
10 2.7 2,600,000 116.97 | 3,041,292.15|109.77| 2,854,011.14 .89
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 12 14
ORANGE SA V/R 2169
11 2.375 2,500,000 111.52| 2,788,047.13|113.55| 2,838,638.03 .87
/PERP//EUR/ 15
BHP BILLITON V/R 2076
12 4.75 2,450,000 | 123.24| 3,019,266.09|114.18| 2,797,313.41 .81
04/22/76/EUR/ 22
TELEFONICA EUR 2169
13 2.625 2,300,000 118.50| 2,725,614.96| 109.03| 2,507,685.04 .42
V/R /PERP//EUR/
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BP CAPITAL MAR 2169

14 3.625 2,216,000 112.26 | 2,487,656.47|112.80| 2,499,562.80 3.40
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 22
ENEL SPA V/R 2078

15 2.5 1,867,000| 110.31| 2,059,578.90|112.31| 2,096,921.01 2.86
11/24/78/EUR/ 11 24
ELM FOR FIRMEN 2168

16 3.75 1,800,000 109.69| 1,974,359.65]| 115.16| 2,072,903.12 2.82
V/R /PERP//EUR/
UNIBAIL-RODAMC 2168

17 2.125 2,100,000 99.18| 2,082,845.87| 97.71| 2,051,995.01 2.79
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 10 25
TOTAL SA V/R 2169

18 1.75 1,400,000 | 105.48| 1,476,674.92]110.63| 1,548,823.82 2.11
/PERP//EUR/
SOLVAY SA V/R 2169

19 4.25 1,200,000 115.73| 1,388,792.58|115.70| 1,388,383.20 1.89
/PERP//EUR/
BHP BILLITON V/R 2077

20 6.5 989,000 | 146.37 | 1,447,597.57|133.44| 1,319,769.04 1.80
10/22/77/GBP/ 10 22
REPSOL INTL FI 2169

21 3.75 1,100,000 111.83| 1,230,129.99|111.75| 1,229,287.65 1.67
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 11
ORSTED A/S V/R 3017

22 2.25 1,000,000 | 116.79| 1,167,866.35|114.29| 1,142,853.77 1.56
11/24/17/EUR/ 11 24
TOTAL SA V/R 2169

23 2.708 1,000,000 119.11| 1,191,124.17|114.09| 1,140,895.75 1.55
/PERP//EUR/
CMS ENERGY CORP 2050

24 4.75 1,115,000 100.00| 1,115,000.00|101.98| 1,137,065.27 1.55
V/R 06/01/50
INFINEON TECHN 2169

25 2.875 1,000,000| 108.90| 1,088,951.23]109.33| 1,093,283.18 1.49
V/R /PERP//EUR/
ARKEMA V/R 2168

26 2.75 900,000 | 112.60| 1,013,398.50| 112.11| 1,008,985.15 1.37
/PERP//EUR/ 17
ENBW V/R 2077

27 5.125 840,000 | 103.67 870,869.38| 102.93 864,595.20 1.18
04/05/77
ENTERPRISE 2078

28 |PRODUC V/R 5.375 15 721,000 | 100.00 721,000.00| 89.50 645,295.00 0.88
02/15/78
EVONIK INDUS V/R 2077

29 2.125 522,000 | 114.73 598,912.28 | 110.31 575,797.64 0.78
07/07/77/EUR/
ENBW V/R 2080

30 1.875 500,000 | 111.70 558,488.21| 111.22 556,107.50 0.76
06/29/80/EUR/ 29
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2019 2020
2018 28 62,318,176.00 6,714,160,282 10.44 1,125
2019 28 47,211,429.00 5,086,559,360 10.02 1,080
2020 29 29,189,271.00 3,144,852,058 10.61 1,143
2019 37,203,530.82 4,008,308,411 10.51 1,132
36,897,514.00 3,975,338,158 10.62 1,144
35,309,651.36 3,804,261,838 10.63 1,145
10 33,763,682.61 3,637,699,164 10.68 1,151
11 32,375,255.80 3,488,110,060 10.68 1,151
12 32,268,315.68 3,476,588,331 10.77 1,160
2020 30,912,437.47 3,330,506,013 10.81 1,165
29,189,271.00 3,144,852,058 10.61 1,143
26,368,404._87 2,840,931,941 9.56 1,030
27,736,977.44 2,988,381,949 10.05 1,083
28,155,059.47 3,033,426,107 10.20 1,099
28,551,736.87 3,076,164,130 10.26 1,105
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2018 28 9,393,871,563 10,313
2019 28 7,174,360,266 9,675
2020 29 5,208,004,048 10,031
2019 6,766,600,856 10,058
6,544,140,065 10,146

6,096,228,792 10,134

10 5,943,070,190 10,154

11 5,865,906,164 10,144

12 5,761,795,750 10,202

2020 5,554,815,421 10,230
5,208,004 ,048 10,031

4,583,626,659 8,995

4,800,631,305 9,431

4,871,969,298 9,568

4,841,320,335 9,624
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0.27 29 225
0.36 39 300
0.36 39 300
2020 0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
1.11 120 925

7.10 5.38

-0.57 -3.28

9.48 6.78

100x
10
10,000
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6,550,758 581,344 5,969,414
(6,550,758) (581,344) (5,969,414)
436,038 1,691,451 4,714,001
(436,038) (1,691,451) (4,714,001)
224,384 2,186,392 2,751,993
(224,384) (2,186,392) (2,751,993)
1,018,701 107,794 910,907
(1,018,701) (107,794) (910,907)
101,095 270,488 741,514
(101,095) (270,488) (741,514)
32,615 254,925 519,204
(32,615) (254,925) (519,204)
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2020 29
NB
2020 29
78,136,729 76,719,790 8,265,790
72,503 7,811
122,258 123,346 13,289
212,381 22,882
21,990 2,369
1,232,522 132,792
1,978,730 213,188
80,361,262 8,658,122
2,507,965 270,208
87,415 9,418
53,310 5,744
43,324 4,668
41,501 4,471
12,780 1,377
6,724 724
123 13
131,889 14,210
4,347 468
2,889,378 311,302
77,471,884 8,346,821
77,116,043 8,308,482
(3,087,403) (332,637)
3,039,735 327,501
403,509 43,474
77,471,884 8,346,821
5,208,004,048
519,204 10,031
29,189,271
2,751,993 10.61 1,143
107.74
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NB
2020 29

3,582,433 385,971

3,582,433 385,971

627,790 67,638

627,789 67,638

177,345 19,107

48,292 5,203

24,832 2,675

15,484 1,668

12,704 1,369

3,272 353

16,855 1,816

1,554,363 167,467

2,028,070 218,504

(2,392,925) (257,814)

1,466,342 157,984

(926,583) (99, 830)

5,606,512 604,046

3,287,858 354,234

8,894,370 958,279

7,967,787 858,449

9,995,857 1,076,954

107.74
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NB
2020 29
2,028,070 218,504
(926,583) (99,830)
8,894,370 958,279
9,995,857 1,076,954
(1,768,803) (190,571)
(1,291,114) (139,105)
(3,059,917) (329,675)
32,615 2,973,194 320,332
224,384 2,403,235 258,925
254,925 (23,589, 948) (2,541,581)
2,186,392 (22,910,038) (2,468,327)
(41,123,557) (4,430,652)
(34,187,617) (3.683,374)
111,659,501 12,030,195
77,471,884 8,346,821
107.74
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NB
2020 29
9,995,857 1,076,954
(45,031,336) (4,851,676)
80,581,334 8,681,833
4,190 451
2,392,925 257,814
(5,606,512) (604,046)
(3,312,621) (356,902)
686,327 73,945
(9,035) (973)
(50,303) (5,420)
(1,815) (196)
45 5
(14,688) (1,582)
(30,937) (3,333)
(2,380) (256)
(9,906) (1,067)
39,591,145 4,265,550
5,382,354 579,895
(44,423,077) (4,786,142)
(3,059,917) (329,675)
(42,100, 640) (4,535,923)
(2,509,495) (270,373)
2,705,344 291,474
195,849 21,101
107.74
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NB
2020 29
2020 29 2020 29
9,675 10.02 1,080
() 209 0.22 24
447 0.73 79
656 0.95 102
(300) (0.36) (39)
10,031 10.61 1,143
6.86 9.58
5,208,004 29,189 3,144,823
® 1.61 1.60
® 2.09 2.10
@
@
107.74
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NB
2020 29
(@D)
99.0
5.4
5.4
BHP Billiton Finance Ltd.
2,450,000 4.75% due 04/22/76 3.6 2,810,687
989,000 6.50% due 10/22/77 1.8 1,408,523
4,219,210
4,219,210
3.1
3.1
Elia System Operator S.A.
800,000 2.75% due 09/05/23(%) 1.2 913,910
Solvay S.A.
1,200,000 4.25% due 12/04/23® 1.9 1,435,945
2,349,855
2,349,855
6.8
6.8
Enbridge, Inc.
3,309,000 5.50% due 07/15/77 4.2 3,275,083
360,000 6.00% due 01/15/77 0.5 373,500
Transcanada Trust
1,516,000 5.30% due 03/15/77 2.0 1,550,110
100,000 5.88% due 08/15/76 0.1 107,500
5,306,193
5,306,193
1.5
1.5
Orsted AS®
1,000,000 2.25% due 11/24/17 1.5 1,144,690
1,144,690
1,144,690
12.3
12.3
Arkema S.A.
900,000 2.75% due 06/17/24) 1.3 1,028,062
Danone S.A.
100,000 1.75% due 03/27/23® 0.1 110,394
Electricite de France S.A.
2,200,000 6.00% due 01/29/26) 4.0 3,105,375
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(@)
Engie S.A.
100,000 1.38% due 01/16/23(M 0.1 109,188
Orange S.A.
2,500,000 2.38% due 01/15/25M 3.7 2,854,670
870,000 5.25% due 02/07/24M 1.4 1,094,269
Solvay Finance S.A.
100,000 5.87% due 06/03/24(M 0.2 126,784
TOTAL S.A.
1,000,000 2.71% due 05/05/23 1.5 1,152,676
9,581,418
9,581,418
13.7
13.7
Bayer AG
6,576,000 2.38% due 04/02/75 9.4 7,279,173
300,000 2.38% due 11/12/79 0.4 329,561
Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
100,000 3.00% due 04/23/75 0.2 113,820
EnBW Energie Baden-Wuerttemberg AG
100,000 3.63% due 04/02/76 0.1 113,168
Evonik Industries AG
522,000 2.13% due 07/07/77 0.8 585,432
Infineon Technologies AG
2,000,000 2.88% due 01/01/25M 2.8 2,189,343
10,610,497
10,610,497
2.7
2.7
Enel SpA
1,867,000 2.50% due 11/24/78 2.7 2,099,857
2,099,857
2,099,857
0.4
0.4
Grand City Properties S.A.
100,000 2.50% due 07/24/23® 0.1 113,140
Holcim Finance Luxembourg S.A.
198,000 3.00% due 07/05/24 0.3 225,009
338,149
338,149
13.1
13.1
Telefonica Europe BV
2,300,000 2.63% due 03/07/23M 3.3 2,552,695
TenneT Holding BV
100,000 3.00% due 03/01/24® 0.2 115,886
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Q)
Volkswagen International Finance NV
3,000,000 2.70% due 12/14/22) 4.3 3,334,746
500,000 3.38% due 06/27/24M 0.7 565,350
3,100,000 3.88% due 06/14/27® 4.6 3,545,830
10,114,507
10,114,507
0.3
0.3
Fastighets AB Balder
100,000 3.00% due 03/07/78 0.1 111,763
Volvo Treasury AB
100,000 4.85% due 03/10/78 0.2 120,668
232,431
232,431
36.7
36.7
British Telecommunications PLC
5,200,000 1.87% due 08/18/80 7.2 5,543,780
Centrica PLC
3,231,000 5.25% due 04/10/75 5.7 4,399,335
NGG Finance PLC
5,049,000 5.63% due 06/18/73 9.4 7,304,624
SSE PLC
7,191,000 4.75% due 09/16/77 9.6 7,404,573
Vodafone Group PLC
3,300,000 3.10% due 01/03/79 4.8 3,733,610
28,385,922
28,385,922
3.0
3.0
Enterprise Products Operating LLC
2,359,000 5.38% due 02/15/78 3.0 2,337,061
2,337,061
2,337,061
78,136,729 76,719,790
78,136,729 99.0 76,719,790
1.0 752,094
100.0 77,471,884
(8,346,820,782 )
@
(@) 3017 11 24
107.74
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Citibank NA
Citibank NA
Goldman Sachs
Royal Bank of
Canada

Royal Bank of
Canada

Royal Bank of
Canada

State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Citibank NA
Citibank NA
Citibank NA
Citibank NA
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Royal Bank of
Canada

State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.

1,343,600
22,791
242,701

342,634
1,076,305

59,345

23,317

366,392

414,077

90,968

482,939

446,497

986,408

120,563

99,571

163,365

299,584

1,950,435
53,367,171
14,837,429

49
210,153
249,379

51

673,807

129,717

151,010

2020
2020
2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

2020

2020

2020

22
22
22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22
22
22
22
22
22
22

22

22

22

(1,502,973)
(25,000)
(264,823)

(378,007)
(1,200,000)

(50,000)

(20,000)
(400,000)
(450,000)
(100,000)
(535,000)
(500,000)

(1,100, 000)
(131,900)
(130,000)
(215,045)
(350, 895)

(1,500, 000)

(47,708,183)
(11,391,338)
(5,324)
(160, 289)
(226,819)

(45)
(520,000)

(100,000)

(134,963)
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(22,533)  (22,533)

112 112
2,596 2,596
@17 @17

(14,078)  (14,078)

1,438 1,438
112 112
3,708 3,708
6,249 6,249
232 232
(2,876)  (2.,876)

(8,029)  (8,029)

(13,130)  (13,130)

942 942
(2,645)  (2,645)

(6,09)  (6,096)

(3,456)  (3,456)

31,889 31,889
800,109 800,109
267,557 267,557
@ @

5,139 5,139
(540) (540)

1 1

8,711 8,711
1,814 1,814
2,302 2,302
1,132,911  (73,861) 1,059,050
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Citibank NA
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation

5,735,813,476
14,227,705
34,275,360

4,000,000

1,618,263

1,387,722

4,892,369

164,632
149,795

128,514

34,522

1,092,055

300,175

136,663

85,997

129,305

233,132

24,899

351,424

1,368,564

121,907

210,411

2020
2020
2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020
2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

22
22
22

22

22

22

22

22
22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

22

(52,491,799)
(130,070)
(313,487)

(36,827)

(14,855)

(12,651)

(44,697)

(18,130,927)
(16,468,813)

(14,056,380)

(3,777,330)

(117,480,973)

(32,399,988)

(14,974,890)

(9,481,261)

(14,448,046)

(25,496,532)

(2,711,215)

(38,098, 454)

(149,693,927)

(13,450,311)

(23,015,565)
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836,824 836,824
2,212 2,212
5,188 5,188

363 363
191 191
252 252
789 789
(3,940)  (3,940)

(3,323)  (3.323)

(2,175)  (2.175)

(598) (598)

(222) (222)

(1,064)  (1,064)

(2,565)  (2,565)

(2,155)  (2,155)

(5,026)  (5,026)

(3,921)  (3,921)

(309) (309)

(2,795)  (2,795)

(23,213)  (23,213)

(3,147)  (3.,147)

(3,575)  (3,575)

845,819  (58,028) 787,791
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NB
2020 29
2016 12 16
2012 10 15
2009 a CIMA
2017 22
LLC
CIBC
UFJ PB
FASB ASC

946

GAAP
GAAP
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12

GAAP

2020 29
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2020 29
76,719,790 76,719,790
1,978,730 1,978,730
78,698,520 78,698,520
2020 29
131,889 131,889
131,889 131,889
FASB ASC 740
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78 9,198,347 65 3,782,488
31
18,117,405 83 2,216,201

)
)
)
() ) )

2019 28 64,448,072 47,211,429 111,659,501
2,973,194 2,403,235 5,376,429

(23,589,948)  (22,910,038)  (46,499,986)

(1,768,803) (1,291,114) (3,059,917)

6,220,098 3,775,759 9,995,857
2020 29 48,282,613 29,189,271 77,471,884
2019 28 741,514 4,714,001 5,455,515
32,615 224,384 256,999
(254,925)  (2,186,392)  (2,441,317)
2020 29 519,204 2,751,993 3,271,197
2020 29 92.99 10.61
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10.00
10,000
10

2020 29
2020 29 2,507,965

10

2017
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ASC  815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
ISDA 1SDA
1SDA
2020 29 MNA
MNA
(O]

Citibank NA 1,936,492 (22,534) 1,913,958
Goldman Sachs 15,136 (7,803) 7,333

Royal Bank of Canada 10,149 (10,149)

State Street Bank And Trust Co. 14,779 (14,779)

Westpac Banking Corporation 2,174 (2,174)
1,978,730 (57,439) 1,921,291

2020 29 MNA
MNA
(©)

Citibank NA 22,534 (22,534)

Goldman Sachs 7,803 (7,803)
Royal Bank of Canada 14,555 (10,149) 4,406
State Street Bank And Trust Co. 32,776 (14,779) 17,997
Westpac Banking Corporation 54,221 (2,174) 52,047
131,889 (57,439) 74,450
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@
2020 29
1,978,730 131,889
2020
1,566,287 3,312,621
0.65
0.30 0.35
2020 29
627,790 2020 29 41,501
0.08 2.5
0.07 2.5
0.06
80,000
0.015
15,000 2020
29 15,484 2020 29 12,780
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0.05
2020 29 48,292
2020 29 6,724
0.65
2020 29 627,789
2020 29 87,415
10
180,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500
11
1970
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2020 29

12

13
2020 26
2020 2020 26 60,696
1,262,614 475,520
2020 2020 26 827,780
639,449 330,807

CovID-19

2020 11 2019 COVID-19
() ( )COVID-19
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NEUEB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
February 29, 2020

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Asgals:

Ivsestments 5 securites, at walue [cost of USD 78,136, 729)

Casn

Foreign currendy, ot valoe {oos of USD 122 258)

Resceivable for investments seld

Reciivable For Units isswed

Interest receivalie

Unnga sed aparecation ea loneed faneign carrency exchange coatracls
Todal asaets

Liahilities:

Payable for Uails redeemed

Apcrued dabToutors Tees.

iecrued professional fees

Accraied custodan @il sab-adminstratoss lees
Agcraed manegement lees

Acrued rustee fees

Aecrued agent company's fee

Accrued registration Tees

Unrpaoed deprecialaon o lorwasd fameign currendy exchange contracs
Sacraed olher expemes

Todal liabilitses

Nt Asatd Attrilbutable te Unitholder
Anatyiis of Net Assats:

Paid in caginal
Accumulated dstrioution ineeces of net ivestment come

Accumulated net realzed gains on imaestmeents and Toregn currency transactons and foreard

Ty EEChange covlacs

Kt wirialiped 3507 ecilion an irmealmesls 3ad lodegn cusrency i matUon 3nd losward

CUITETCY eRchange conlacts
Mt Assets Attributable 1o Unitholder

Mt Asset Vaheo pr Unit
P Class JPY 5 208,004,048 + 519,204 Units outstand ng)
{USD Class WSD 25,189,271 + 2,751,553 Units cubstanding)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial state ments.
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L&D 76,719,790

72,503

113 346
212 381
21,530
1232522
1978730
B0, 360,262

2,507 365
B7 415
53,310
43,324
41501
12, 7&0

6,724
123
131 883

2 BR9.I7H

D TTATLERL

usD 7116043

{3,087,403)
3039735

A03 509

Jt] TTATLEBL

g

IFY 10,081
Ush 10.61



NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 29, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Inwastmant Income:
Interest
Tetal lavestment Fgamne

Expaeiia:
Management fees
Distriairtor's fees
Custod an and sub-adminstrator's fees
Agent company's fees
Predessional feos
Trusbee fees
Transfer agent fees
Regstration fees
Ohver eapenies

Total Cxpenses

Nt Insnestmaent Incomss

Realized ard Unrealiced Gaing/iLasies);
Ry oee] prinires [l )
Imeestrnents in securities
Fareign currency transactions and forward foreign cusrency exchange contracts
et nealized losses
Change inunrealiped sppeeciotica{dege scation)
Irpeestrments in securities
Fareign currency tramsactions and Torward foreign currency exchange contracts
ket chaqge inwarealized sppredation
Kt realized and wirealized gains

Nt incre e in nat assets resulting from aperations.

[157+] SE2 433
3,583.431

627,790
627,789
177,345
452192
24,832
154584
12,704
3372
16855
1,554 163

2028,070

12,302 535)
1,366, 142
26, 583)

5,606,512
3 XE? B56
B B0 170

7967 TR?

UsD 9,905,857

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial state ments.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended February 29, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Inseriaiis [Dierenid] in Mot Assats fram:

Operations:

Ket investment imgome

Mot realized losses

Kot change ia uneealised agaredaticn

Ket incremse imnet assets resul ting from operations

Distronwtons o Unitholder
1FY Class
LSO Class

Total Distributions

Cagital Transactsons:

Units ssued
IV Class {32,615 Units)
USD Class {224,384 Unis)

Units e med
1PY Class {254,925 Unis)
USDClass {2, 186,302 Units}
Ket decrease in net assets reswting from caipitsl tranaactiom

Tetsl Decrease in Met Asits
Nt Assads:

Beginning al year
End al year

usp 2028070
926,583}

B 594 370

9,995 857

{176 ENI)
11291 114)
13.059.917)

2473194
2403235

(23,589 48]
422.910.038)

(41,123,557)

{34,187 617)

111653501
Usp JTATLERA

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial state ments.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended February 29, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Cach flows from operating activities:
Kl increase i ol biaels resulling Tam ogeralions 50 9905 857

Adustments to recondle the net inorease in net assets resulting from operations to net cash provided by
operating sctivities:

Purchase ol rwestments (45,031,336}
Progeeds from sa'e and maturity af iswestments RiSR1 334
Ket amartigalion and [scdreton) of premioms and Esooants on oarpocate debl ol igations o et Tesm

awEstmeEnts 4,190
Reatned loases on i esbments in secueibes 2.392925
Change inuntealiped apgeeciation on inssiments 13606512)
Change inwnrealiped apeeeciation an lorwand foreign currency exchange coalaacty §3.312621)

Change in assets and liabilities related to operations:

Decrease in indenest receivale GHE 327

Decrpase in actrwed custodian and sub-sdministrato’s fees 49 MA5)H
Decrease In acorved prolessional fees (50 3Da)
Decrease In accrsed Erostess fes {1,815)
InCrease imaccrued registration fees 45

Diecrgasis in porsed management fees [14,688)
Decrpmrse in aotrued distr Dutes fines (30,937}
Decrease in aorsed agent company’s Tees {2 380}
Decrease in aorrued oher Fxpomees 19.506)
Mt cash provided by operating activities 19,541,148

Cah flows used in financing activities:

Proceeds from Unlks lssoed 5.3182 184

Paymeents on Uats redeemed (44,423 077)
Distromatons pand bo Unithelder {3.053917)
Nt cash used im financing activities (42,100,640)
Net decrease in cash and foreign currency !2..“353!5!
Casn and forelgn currency at begl nning of year 3,705, 344

Cash and foreign ourrency at erd of year usD 195 849

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial state ments.
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NEUEB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

1P Clads. WSO Clais
For the Year Ended  For the Yedr Ended
February 20, 2020 February 29, 2020

Ket Assrt Walue, beginning of year

1Py S4TS Ush 100
ket Investment income' ™ 208 o2
Wik nealived and wnrealioed oses 447 073
Mt dearinsd = nel Bsaets s ing remn ooersbans 15546 095
Lews i babons {300 {0.36]
Neet Asset Value, end of year Y I0031 UsD 1061
Total return [0 9.58%
Ratica/Supplermental data:
Ket ansets e of year {000') Iy 5,208, 0604 USD 29,189
Ratlo of expenses b average et assets™ 1.61% 1L.60%
Ratio-of net investment income io average ret assets 2.09% 2.10%

U Caleutated uaAg fverape Uaits cutstanding far Uhe year,
! Calculated on an anaual basis,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial state ments,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS

February 29, 2020

{Expressed in United States Dollar)

rincipal % of Het
Lurrenty  Amount Securily Daicriplion Asfati Fair Value
FIOLDY INCORSL SDOU RTTIES [95.0%)
ALISTRALIA {5.9%)
CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES (5.4%)
BHP Bl 2o Fiaasee Lre
FUR 2AB0000 &, 75% cor 042276 6% usD 2 AM0,EET
GRE SEROGD  B.50% due 10/2277 14 1,808,528
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES 4,219,210
TOTAL AUSTRALIA 4,218,210
BELGILIM {3.1%)

CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES (3 1%)
EFa System Operatos 54,

FUR 000,000 2.75% due 050529 12 913,910
Lol 5.A
FUR 1,200,000 4,25% due 12/04/23" 19 1,835,945
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES o :EH0ESS
TOTAL BELGILM L
CANADA (6.8%)
CORPORATE BONDS & MOTES [6.5%)
Enbeidge, Inc.
1] 3900000 5,505 e 0T S1Y 4.1 3275083
UsDr 60,000 6,009 e DLS15/77 as 373,500
Tracacansda Trust
USL 1,516,000 5.30% cue 03/1597 20 1,550,110
usD 100,000 5.88% due 0811576 0l 107 500
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES 5,306,193
TOTAL CAMADA 5,306,193
DENMARKE [ L5%]
DOFPORATE BONDS & NOTES (1L9%)
Orsted 451
FUR 1,000,000 2.25% due 112417 15 1,144,580
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES 1,184,680
TOTAL DENMARK 1,144,650
FRANCE [12.3%)
COFPORATE BONDS & ROTES |12, %)
Mrioema SA, _
EUR E ] 2,755 aue 051 724 13 1,028,062
Damone 5.4,
111 pLoiTEe ] 1.!&%;‘..{&3{2({23"' 01 110,594
Electricte o Franoe 5.4,
Lo 2. 000,000 6005 e DS2926 40 3,106,375
Enge 5.4
Bk L] 1.38% doe 01/ 16,23 0. LRE
Orange 5.4
EUR 2,500,000 2.38% due 001525 ar 2,854,670
Bk 00 5.25% e 020724 14 10094, 264
sty Finante 54
e L iTE ] 5,875 doe (603,24 L] 126, TR
TOTALS.A,
EUR 1,000,000 2.71% due 060623 15 1,152,600
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES 9,581 418
TOTAL FRANCE 0,581 418
GERBAANY [13.7%)
CORPORATE BONDS & FOTES (13.7%)
Bayer &0
FUR 6,576,000 2.38% due 40275 94 7,213
EUR ELoiTee] 2.98% due 1171275 04 179,561
Berte's=nan SE & Co. KGak
111 pLoiTEe ] B.00% cur (2375 0z 115,830
EnBW Enengie Raden-Woeamembeng AG
EUR 100,000 1.64% due 40275 0l 113,148
Eveile Industries &G
EUR SFE000 2.13% due 07077 LE: 585,432

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial state ments.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (continued)
February 29, 2020

{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Principal % af Mot
Lurrenty  Amount Setufily Dascriplion Assats Faar Valua
FLOED INCOME SECURITIES [959.0°%) {continased)
GERBANY [13.7%) {contineed]
COFPORATE BONDS & MOTES (13.7%) [continued]
Infreee Technologes AL
11 FALCIET ] 2,883 s 000 /25™ 1HE LSD 2. 1H%. 345
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES 10,610,487
TOTAL GEFMANTY 10,610,487
ITALY [2.7%)
CORPORATE BONDS & MOTES (2. 7%)
Enel Sp&
bR 186 T 000 1,505 e 1172418 7 2099 H5 7
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES 2090 K57
TOTAL ITALY 2,099,557
LUXEMBOLRG §0.4%)
CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES |0.4%)
Gracd Oy PropeTes 5.4
FUR 100,000 2.50% due 07/ 2423 0l 113,140
Ml Frdnos Lunessaung 54
FUR 1SR, D00 3,00% e 07/0G,24™ [k 225,009
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES 338,149
TOTAL LLUNE R BDLIRG 338,149
NETHERLANDS (13 1%)
COFPORATE BONDS & MOTES (13.1%)
Telefonica Europe BY
ErR £ 500,00 2.63% gue 007723 LR ] 2,352,685
TenneT Hoic g BY
EUR 10000 B009 e O0S00,f24 0.z 115,886
Weliswagen npersational Finance MV
EuR 00,000 2.70% doe 1211422 4% 5,954, 140
EUR SOOOO0  3,3R% e 0627,24" oF 565,350
EUR 2,100,000 3.88% due 01427 b 3,545 B350
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES 10,114,507
TOTAL RETHERLANDS 10,114,507
SWIDEN (0. 1%)
COFPORATE BONDS & MOTES (0 1)
Fastighets &l Bace:
FUR 100,000 1,00% due 030778 0l 111,763
e Treasury AR
FUR bl 4,855 aur 0371078 L1 L 20LESR
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES ZEzAd1
TOTAL SWEDEN 232431
UNITED KIFGIOM (36.7%)
CORPORATE BONDS & MOTES (36.7%)
Britsh Telecommunicat ors FLL
ERPR 5, D0H0L0CK) 1,875 cor 71RO ) 5,544,780
Centrica FLC
GBF 2,791,000 5.25% due D4510/75 57 4,359,335
GG Finance FLC
GEF 5,049,000 5.63% due 051873 24 7,304,624
55E PLC
usD 1,191,000 4755 due 091677 L1 7,808,573
Vadatone Group PLC
EUR 3, 300,000 2,105 cue 00f03,79 48 3,743,610
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES IH 5ES 822
TOTAL LRATUD KR GEOM IH, 3RS 022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial state ments.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (continued)
February 29, 2020

{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Brincips % af Mt
Currency  Amount Security Description Assats Fair Value
FLOED: INCOME SECU RITIES [99.0%) {continued)
UNITED STATES {3.0%)
CORPORATE BONDS & MOTES |3.0%)
Enterpeige Produces Operating LLC
U 2. %55 000 5.38% due 0311578 Bire ush 2397 061
TOTAL CORFORATE BONDS & NOTES 2,337,061
TOTAL LAKITED STATES 2,337,061
TOTAL FINED INOOME SECURITES [Cost USDTR.1EET2H] TE, P10, 780
TOTAL INVESTRENTS [Cost WSOTH,136,729) U uso 76,719,730
CASH AND OTHER ASSETS IN EXCESS OF LLABSLITIES 10 752,54
LML

WET ASHTS

! Perpefual security. Maturity date presenbed represents the nesd call date.
T pah; ity b of the security 2 117247300 7

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these financial state ments,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (continued)
February 29, 2020

{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Furd Lval Forward Foreign Currency Excharge Contracts

Mt Liriradlivid

Naotional  Settlerment Motianal Unrealized Unrealized Appreciationf

Count Armsount Date Sell Amournt ation
EUR  Ctinanic NA 1,343, 600 04/22/2020 usD (1502973 LS = B0 (22,533) S0 {22,533)
EUR  Ctipant NA& 22,191 0af22 2020 usn [ 2% 000 12 = 112
FUR  Ga'enas Sachs M2, 042272020 1 C I e L ] 21,55 - 2,556
EUR  Royal Bank of Canacs 2084 042202020 ust (RO - (LT (F
EUR Roysl Bask of Canads BOT6E05 04222020 WRD (.00, 0000 = (14,078} {14,078}
EUR  Royal Bank of Canaca 55,345 n4f22 2020 GEP (310,000 1438 = 1,438
EUR Srate Street Bank And Troat Coo 28,317 02252020 GHP (0,00 112 112
FUR Siake Street Bank And Troad Coo 366,392 04222020 UsD R ka ] v - 3,708
[EUR  Stafe S&reet Bank And Trost Coo 414,057 0422/ 2020 (L] {450,000 B245 = 6,249
FUR  Stane Serest Bank And Troan Co BSO8R 04222020 WD {100,000 a2z = 32
EUR  Stafe S8ree? Bank &nd Trest Coo L PR L] L TFFIF usn {535, 000) - (ZAM) [FR. 5
EUR  Srate Seree Bank &nd Tt Co, 46,207 0472272020 USD (5000000 = (B0 {028
EUR  Stafe Sireei Bank And Trost Coo 586, 404 04f22 /2020 WD {1, 100,000 - {13,130} {13, 1304
LR Westpac Bank o Corporatcn 120,553 a2 020 sh {131,500 542 - 2
GEP  State Street Bank And Troat Co §9.571 04222020 usn 1300000 - {2545) {2,645)
P State SEree? Bank And Trost Coo 163,365 naf22f2020 ush [215.04%) = () {6,096
GEP Weritpas Bankdsg Corparation M sRa 0472272020 ELR (350853 - (24560 {3.456)
LGB0 Ciioanc N& 1,550,435 042252020 GEP 1,500 0000 ERE.LLY s 37, H8Y
S0 Cinesk NA SEAGTAM 0df2202020 ELIR (47, 708 15T B0, 108 = B, VO
S0  Cfibanc NA 18,837,429  04/22/2020 GEP [11,391332) 267,557 - 267,557
S0 Ctioane NA& &y L TFFIF Iy [5.524) = (411 (41
B0 Golasnas Sachs 210,153 04/22/2020 GEP [ 180 735 5035 = 5139
LD  Golcwan Sachs 245,374 04f22//2020 ELR [ 32 B0 - {540} {5404
S0 Ge'esnas Rachs 51 0472212020 ELIE 1431 ] - 1
S0 Boyal Bank of Canaca BIABOT 042272020 GEP (5200000 B - B
S0 Stafe Stroe Bank And Trat Co, L FL v O (L PFFTF R GRP {160,000 1814 - 1,814
LSO Stafe Street Bank And Troat Coo 151,000 04/22/2020 ELR (134 553 e [vF] - 2,302

LSO 1,132,911 WSO (73,B61) LSO 1,065,060

Iy Hedped Claas Forwand Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

Met Uninealized
Hotional  Setement Motional Unrealired Unrealized  Apprecation)
By Counterpary Arnount Date Sall amourt  Approclat) [Depreciation)  (Deprecation)
1PV Cninase NA 5,73RBI3ATE 41RO USD (33,451,799 LISD 535,524 Usk = LSD RIGKE2S
IPY  Golderan Sachs 14,227,705 04222010 usn (1300700 2212 - 2212
1P Gadenin Sachs BLITSIED 4222000 usD 13480 5,18% 5,188
IPY  Stage Street Bank And Tron Co. 4,000,000 0432/ H0H0 UsD (36,8270 w3 - 363
IPY Westpac Banking Corporation LEIB263 04222000 usD [14,855) 151 - 191
1PV W¥estpac Banog Corporaton LEBERTED  OHIL0N0 usp (13,6510 5l = 152
IPY  Wesipac Banking Corporatan 4892369 04222010 usn (34,6570 Tas - THY
USD  Gaesnas Sachs TELERD  O4/TP0N0 1 R ERE ] = (3.940) (2940}
USD  Gavemnan Sachs 145,795 O4/32/H000 I (16,468, 813) - [EEFE] (2,323}
USD  Westpac Bank sg Corporatian 1EE514  O4/TE 000 I [0, 066, 9800 - (2175} (21750
USD W tpac Bankg Corporatan L L T ] (3777330 - (558} (B
USDF  ‘Westpac Bankng Corporatan L8058 042212000 I {117,480,573) - {zrz) [FF]
LSO Wiestpae Rankieg Corparation BOOATS 04T I [12399.98R) = {1,064} {1,064}
USD  ‘Wesipac Bank ng Corporat an 136661 04222000 I (14,574, 8500 - {2.565) {25650
S0 Wedtpac Bank sg Corparalion BR9RT 04330000 L) {5481, 2610 = (2155} {2155}
USD Wi sapac Bank s Corparatan 1F305 04232000 IFF [14,348,045) - {5,026) {50260
U0 W dpac Bank g Corparation FLURE PR TTFRTF oF ] I [154596,5320 - [ELFall {5821}
USD Wi stpae Rankiog Corparation MEW 04110 {1 P A i ] = (5] (309}
USD  ‘Westpac Bank'~g Corporat an 151424 04222020 I (18050, 4540 - {2.795) {2755
USD  Westpac Bankng Corporation 1368504 O4STLIP000 P {145.65%.520 - [@321%) [PEFIET]
USD  Wesipac Bani s Corporat an 121907 O4/72f2000 P [13,850,311) - {2,147} (2147
LS Wi pac Rank g Cor poratian T4 O4IRPN I (330605, 5650 = {3.575) {3575
IS0 B551% USD  [SROSR)  LSD TRT.TRI
Currancy legend
FUR Furs
GHP Beitish Pound
iy} Japarwe Yen
4] s Dolar

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these financial state ments.
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

1, ORGAMIZATION

MNEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund [the “Fund”) is a series trust of the Mikko AM Offshore Funds, an open-ended unit
trust established by a supplemental trust deed dated Decernber 16, 2016 (the “Supplemental Trust Deed™), under the kaws
of the Cayman Islands. Nikko AM Offshore Funds was established by a master trust deed dated October 15, 2012 (the
“Master Trust Deed”), under the laws of the Cayman Islands and Is Beensed with the Cayman klands Monetary Authonty
pursuant bo section 4{1ja) of the Mutual Funds Law (2009 Revision), The Fund commenced operations on February 22,
2017,

Thie Fund's dssets are managed on a day to day basis by Nikko &AM Global Cayman Limited {the “Manager”). The Manager
delegates imvestment management duties to Nikko Asset Management Co, Ltd., (the “Investment Manager”), The
Irviestment Manager delegates investment management duties to Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC, (the “Sub-
Investment Manager™). The administration of the Fund is delegated to Brown Brothers Harriman & Co, (the “Custodian”
and “Sub-Administrator”], a limited partnership organized under the lws of the State of New Yark,

The investrnent objective of the Fund is to schieve a mid to long term total return through income and capital appréciation.
The Series Trust shall mainly invest in both investment grade and non-investment grade hybrid securities that are issued by
non-financial corporate isswers and have been rated by either of Moody's, SEP or Fitch. The highest rating from all three of
these agencies shall be applied to each corporate hybrid security and the average rating of the portfolio shall be BEB-/Baad
orf abave.

Corparate hybrid debt securities are structured instruments that combine both equity and fixed income charactensties that
penerally offer a means for issuars to borrow money from investors in return for interest paymaents, Such corparate issuers
may utilize hybrid debt for a variety of reasons, including bolstering their capital levels, lowering their weighted average
cost of capital, diversifying their funding sources and managing credit ratings. Though terms and conditions hawve become
increasingly standardized, the specific characteristics of each instrument (swch as payment conditions, the ratio of debt and
equity-like fisatures, time frames and applicable rates) can vary,

The Series Trust may also invest in fixed and floating rate debt securities, including bonds, issued by governments and
Rowemment related entities.

Derivative Instrurnents will be used for efficient portfolio management andfor investment purposes anly,

The awets of the Series Trust may be held in one or more currencies, and the Series Trust will, in principle, engage in
currency hidging between the currency of denomination of each Class (U5, Dallar for USD Class and Japanese Yen for JFY
Class) and the currency of the investments in the underlying portfolio, provided, howewer, that such hedging for JPY Class
may be performed through the LLS. Dallar,

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, CIBC Bank and Trust Company [Cayman)
Limited (the “Trustee” and the “Admintstrater”) is named as Trustee of the Fund.

The Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley PB Securities Co., Ltd to act as Agent Company [the “Agent
Campany”) and the Manager appainted Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley P8 Securities Co., Ltd to act as Distributor (the
“Dristributor”) of Units in Japan or such other perion of institution as may be appointed as distributor of the Series Trust by
thie Manager from time to tirme.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Fund is an Investment Company that follows the accounting and reporting guidance in FASB Accounting Standards
Codification 946.

Lise of Estimates

The accompanying financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
thie United States of Amierica (U5 GRAPY)L, The preparation of financial statements in accordance with LS, GAAP requites
the Fund's management to make estimates and assumptians that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results, includ ing the ultimate amount realized upon the sale of
fair valued investments, could differ fram those estimates and such differences may be significant.
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Batis of Accounting

Security and contractual wansactions are recorded on a trade/contract-date basis. Interest income & recorded on an
effective yield basis, net of any applicable withholding tax. Interest expense and other expenses are recorded an an accrual
basis, Realized gains and losses from security transactions are computed on the basks of the average cost of the securities
sold or coversd. Changes in the valeation of investments are recorded in the Statement of Qperations as unrealized
appreciation or deprecistion.

Valwation of Investments

Bands and other debt securities, including restricted securities [other than short-term obligations but including listed
isaues) are fair valued at their last sale price in the principal market in which such securities are normally traded, on the
basis of valuations furnished by a pricing service, use of which has been approved by the Investméent Manager, or if no sale
has accurred, the bid price on the valuation date as provided by brokers who are market makers in the securities. all debr
securities with less than 12 months ta maturity date, in principle shall be fair valeed using an amortized cost effected by an
effective yield accumulated/amortization method to their maturity date with adjustments based on comparisan with
markat prices as required.

In accordance with the authoritatiee guidance on fair value measurements and disdosures under ULS. GAAP, thir Fund
discloses the fair value of its investments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation technigues wsed to measure
thit Fair walue. The higrarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
far identical assets of labilities [Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priarity to valuations based upon unobservable
inputs that are significant bo the valuation [Level 3 measurements), The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value
hierarchy as follows:

o Level 1 - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical investmants that the Fund
has the ability to access at the measurement date;

= Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are significant and observable for the asset or liability either
directly of indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

= Lavel 3 - Inputs that are significant and unobsenable.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market panticipants
use b make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk, Inputs may include price information, spegific and broad
criedit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors, A financial instrument’s level within the Fair value hierarchy & based upon
the lowest level of any input that is signficant to the fair value measurement. However, the determination of what
constitutes “obiervable” requires significant judpment by the Investrment Manager. The Inwestment Manager congidirs
obsersable data to be market data which is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not
proprietary, and provided by independent sourcss that are actively involved in the rebivant market. The categarization of a
financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily
cormespand to the Investmaent Managers pirceivied risk of that instrument.

Invistments whoe values are badied on the guoted market prices in sctive markets, and therefore classified within Level 1,
waould indude actively traded equities, certain LS. government and sovereign abligations, and certain money market
secufities. The Inwestrment Manager would not adjust the guoted price for such instruments, even in situstions where the
Fund held a large pasition and a sale could reasonably impact the gquoted price.

Irvestments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on quated market prices,
dealer quotations or altefnative pricing sources supported by abservable inputs are classified within Level 2. These include
Imvestment-grade debt securities, short-term irvestments and forward forelgn currency exchange contracts. As Level 2
investments include positions that are not traded in active markets and/for are subject to transfer restrictions, valuatians
may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on avallable market information.

Investments classified within Lewvel 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they would trade infreguently. Level 3
instruments would include asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. As observable prices are not
avallable for those securities, the Fund would use valuation technigues te derive the fair value,

The mputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with Investing
in those securities.
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Valvation of Investments fcontinuved)

The fallowing table presents the financial instruments carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by captian and by
level within the valuation hierarchy as of February 29, 2020, Further dassifications of the financial instruments are
presentead in the Portfalis of Investments. There were no movemants between levels during the year,

Aswels at Fair Value Fair Walue at
Livid 1 Lival 3 Liwiel 3 Febinoncy 29, J020
Faed lncome Securities (114 = uso TE. 19,7590 usp = usp 76,719,730
Forward Foreign Currency
Exchangs Comtracts - 1,978,730 - 1,978,730
Totsl LIS0r = LISD TEAIE.5 20 LIS0 = s TR.638. 500
Lizhilities at Fair Value Waae at
Liswiel 1 Lowel 2 L 3 Fieteuiary 39, 2000
Forward Foneign Carrengy
Lxchange Contracts LISor - UsD 131,885 UsDh - UsDh 131, B0
Total usC - USE 131 B85 153+ = ush 131,559
Fareign Currency Transiation

Assets and liabilities held in currencies other than United States Dollar (“USD" or the “Functional Currency™) are translated
to the Functianal Currency at the rate of exchange prevailing at the financial statement date. Income and expenses are
translated at the rate of exchange prevalling at the date on which the income or expense is Incurred. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses arising on foreign currency transactions ane included in the 5Statement of Operations in the
period in which they occur.,

The Fund does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on
investmants from the fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of securities held, Such fluctuations are induded
with the net realized and unrealized gain or loss from investments.

Incame Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman lslands, there are no incomes, withhalding, capital gains or ather taxes payable by
the Fund. In certain jurisdictions other than the Cayman |skands, foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and
interest recedved by the Fund. Capital gains derived by the Fund in such jursdictions generally will be exempt from fareign
Income or withholding taxes at source, The Fund intends to conduct its affairs such that it willl not be subject to Income tax
in any jurisdiction. As a result, no provision far income taxes has been made in the finandal statements. Unithalder may be
taxed on their proportionate share of the Fund's tax basis income based an their individ val circumstances,

The Fund follows the authoritative guidance on accounting for and disdlosure of uncertainty in tax positions (Financial
Accounting Standards Board [“FASR") - Accounting Standards Codification 740), which requires the Manager to determine
whether a tax position of the Fund is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing
autharity, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position.
For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized in the financial statements is
reducid by the largest benefit that has a greater than fitty percent likelihood of being realized vpon ultimate settlement
with the relevant taxing authority. The Manager has determined that there is minimal or no effect on the financial
staterments being under this authoritative guidance.

Fanward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

The Fund may enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts 1o hedpe against foreign currency exchange rate
risks on all or a portion of nonUSD denominated investrents or for efficient portfolio managemaent purposes. Whaen
entering into a forward foreign currency exchange contract, the Fund agrees to receive or deliver a fised quantity of
fareign currency for an agreed-upon price on an agrsed future date. Thise contracts are valued daily, and the Fund's net
equity therein, representing unrealized appreciation/[depreciation) on the contracts as measured by the difference
betwinen thie faraard fareign currency exchange rabes at the dates of entry into the contracts and the forward rates at the
reporting date, is included in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Realzed and unrealized gains and losses are included
in the Statement of Operations.

These instruments irvohae market risk, credit risk, or both kinds of risks, in axcess of the amount recognized in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilitkes, Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their,
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Forward Fareign Currency Exchenge Contracts [continued)

contracts and from movement in currency and securities values and interest rates, In addition to the class level hedging,
the Fund had realized gains of USD 3,782,488 on 78 forward forelgn currency exchange contracts during the year with an
average notional of USD 9,198,347 and an average term to maturity of 65 days, The Fund abo had realized losses of LISD
2,216,201 on 31 forward foreign currency exchange contracts held at the Class IPY Hedged lewel during the year with an
average national of USD 18,117,405 and an average term to maturity of 83 days.

Cash and Foreign Currency
Cash and foreign currency comprises all currency held with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., and avernight and ather short

term place ments with other financial institutions,

UNITS

The net assets of the Fund are divided into JFY Class Units and USD Class Units. The Units are denominated in Japanese Yen
and United States Dollar. JPY Class Units and USD Class Units are available to an eligible investor who §s any persan,
corporation or entity which is not (i) a citizen or resident of the U.5,, a partnership arganized or existing in the W5, or any
corparation, trust or ather entity organized under the laws of or existing in the US; {ii] resident or domiciled in the Cayman
Islands |excluding any object of a charitable trust or power or an exempted or non-resident Cayman Islands company]; [iii)
unable ta subscribe for or hold Units without violating applicable laws, or [iv] a custodian, nominee, or trustee for any
persan, corporation or antity described in (i) to (i) above.

The Manager may determine to issue one or mare classes of Units of the Fund without prior notice to or written consent of
the Unitholder.

All of the net assets attributable to JPY Class Units and USD Class Units are held by one Unitholder.

Clazs JPY Class USD Taotal Fumd

Balance ak Februsang 28, 2009 wsh B4,44B072 USD 47,211,429 USD111,659,501
‘Subscriptions daring the year 2973194 2,403,235 5,376,429
Risdemptions dutsng thi year [23,589.945) {22.910,03R8) (46,499 556 )
Distrittions 1, &R, B0 {1291, 114) {3.058.917)
Kot increase im nel assets resulting From operations 6 220 CAE 3 ITLING 0,995 85T
Kt Assets ot Febroary 19, 2030 Ush 48 IRI613  USD X0 1R9271  USD ITATLER
Numizies of Units in issue ot Febeaary 28, 2009 741,514 4,714,001 5455515
Linits i duing Uhe year 31615 124,384 136999
Un'ts redeemied during the yea [354,925) {2,186, 392) [2441.31F
NumBer af Units in Baue at Febeoasry 29, 2000 519 204 2,751 993 3.271.197
Ket Asset Value per Unt at Febowsry 29, 2000 wsh 9209 LSD 10.61

Subscriptions for Units

UISD Class Units were first issued at an initial issue price of USD 10000 per Unit. JPY Class Units were first issued at an initial
izsue price of JPY 10,000 per Unit. On and after initial dlosing day, the minimum initial subscription for USD Class Units per
subscriber is 10 Units or more, and in rultiples of 1 Unit thereafter. The minimum initial subseription for JPY Class Units
per subscriber is 1 Unit or more, and in multiples of 1 Units thereafter,

The Manager may waive of change the minimum initial and additional subscription amounts set forth above in its sole
diseretion from time o time,

Sales Charge
In addition to the subscription price, the applicant shall pay a sales charge calculated at wp to 3% (excluding any tax
applicable) of the purchase price, o the Distributor.

Unft Redemptions

The Fund recognizes redemptions in accordance with the authoritative guidance on distinguishing liabilities from aquity.
Redemptions, whether expressed as United States Dollar, Japanese Yen or Units, are recognized as labikties when each of
the United States Dollar, Japanese Yen and Unit amounts requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed, which
generally may occur either at the time of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal year, depending on the
nature of the request. As a result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but based upon year end net assets are
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NEUEB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

UNITS [continued]
Uit Redemptions feon tinued)

reflected as redemptions payable at February 29, 2020, There were USD 2,507,965 of redemptions payable as at February
24, 2020, induded as Payable for Units redeemed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities,

Repurchase of Units

Each Unithalder may request a repurchase of Units by the Fund unless repurchases have been suspended by the Manager.
Units will be repurchased daily at the Net Asset Value per Unit as at the relevant Repurchase Day (each Valuation Day, or
such ather day or days as the Manager may from time to tirme determine in respect of the Series Trust). There will be no
repurchase charge on repurchases of Units held over five years.

Compulsory Redemption

In ther @vint that the Trustes or the Manager shall determing that any Units of any Class of a Series Trust are being held by
or for the benefit of & person who B not an Eligible Investor for such Series Trust ar that such holding would cause the
Trust or the Series Trust to be required to register, be subject to tax or violate the laws of any jurisdiction, or if the Trustee
or the Manager has reason to doubt the legitimacy of the source of monies used to fund the subscription or purchase of
such Units, or for whatever reason (which may not be disclosed by the Trustee or the Manager to Unitholder) that the
Trustee of the Manager considers appropriate at its absalute discretion having regard to the interests of the Unitholder of
the relevant Class or the Unitholder of the Series Trust as a whobe, then the Manager, after consultation with the Trustee,
may direct the holder thereof to sell (subject to the provisions described below in the section headed "Transfer of Units®)
such Units within 10 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager evidence of such sale, failing which the Manager
may redeem such Units,

Termination of the Fund
Upon termination, the Manager will realize all the assets of the Fund, and after paying out or retaining adequate provision
for all Eabilities properly payable and retaining provision for the costs of the termination, the Trustese shall distribute the
proceeds of that realization to the Unitholder proportionately to their respective interests in the Fund as of the date of
termination of the Fund.

Distributions to Unitholder

The Manager may, in its sobe discretion, declare distributions from June 2017, Distributions will be declared on each
Distribution Record Date and calculated on each Ex-Distribution Date, Distribution Period is a peried commiencing from the
calendar day following the preceding Distribution Record Date and ending on and including the Distribution Record Date,
The distributions will be paid on the rebevant Distribution Payment Date, provided that such amount [if any) declared with
respect to each Class of Units shall only be paid out of the Series Trust's net income, realived and unrealized capital gains
and any distributable funds of thi Sefies Trust attributable to such Class of Units as determined by the Manager.

The declaration of distributions to Unitholder reduces the Class Lavel Net Asset Value per Unit without any cornesponding
change in the number of Class Level Units per Unitholder, This results in a Unitholder's overall investment in the Fund
biting reduced. In addition, any distributions during a wear which are in axcess of the Fund’s net increase in net assets
resulting from operations results in a portion of the distribution being return of capitall

The amount of distributions, if any, will be determined by the Manager in its sole discretion, and no representation or
Buarantee is made that a distribution will be made in respect of each or any Distribution Period,

Capitalization

The Het Asset Value per Unit s caboulated for each Dealing Day (each Valuation Day, or such other day or days as the
Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust), by dividing the difference in valee betwaen the
Fund's assets and liabilites (including acerued fees and expenses of the Fund) by the number of Units sutstanding.

The Trust Deed stipulates that the number of Units to be issued in the Fund shall be unlimited as the Manager shall
determing and shall be without par value.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting Standards Codification 815-10-50 requires disclosures about derivative instrumaents and hedging activities. It
reguires that the Fund disclose: a) how and why an entity wses derivative instruments, b) how derivative instruments and
related hedged items are accounted for and ¢) how derivative instruments and related hedged Rems affect an antity’s
financial position, financial perfermance and cash flows,
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)

The Fund transacts forward derivative instruments primarily far hedging purposes with each instrument’s primary risk
expasure being foreign exchange risk. The forward foreign currency exchange contracts held by the Fund do not qualify as
hedges for accounting purposes under the requirements of ASC §15. The fair value of these dervative instruments is
included in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities with changes in fair value reflected as realized gains/[losses) or net
change in unrealized appreciation/[depreciation] on derivatives within the Statement of Operations (Nobe 2).

The Fund may enter inte an Intemational Swaps and Derivative Assoclation, Inc. Master Agreement [“150A Master
Agresment”) with its counterparties in order to mitigate counterparty risk. The 1SDA Master Agreement B typically
negotiated by the Fund and its counterparties, containing the bi-lateral terms and conditions for all subseguent derivative
transactions. The ISDA Master Agreement allowrs for the netting of all amounts owed to or due from counterparty into a
single net payment if a credit event or default should occur.

The Fund has elected to not offset fair value receivables and payables for derivative contracts on the face of the Statement
of Assats and Liabilities,

At February 29, 3020 the Fund had entered inte the following derivative assets by counterparty net of amounts available
for offset under a Master Netting Agreement (*MNA®] and net of any collateral received by the Fund:

Durieativ Asirts Darivativis Mon-tash Cash Mt Armount al
Caunte rparty Sabject ta 8 MNA_ Available for Ditet Callatersld Aectived Callateral Receivid Chrivativa Asiets’
Civas WA Usp 1936492 USD {E2.534) UsD =usD =Usp 1913958
Go'dman Sachs 15,136 (7.B03) = - 7333
Roya’ Bank of Canada 10,149 {10,144} - - -
State Strect Bank And Trust Cou 14,779 {14,774} - - -
‘Westnac Banking Corporat'an 2,174 £2,174) - - -
Total [1H:] 1,978,730 usD {57,439} USD =50 = LsD 1,921,291

AL Febrpary 29, 2020 the Fund had entered into the following derivative liabilities by counterparty net of amounts available
for affset under & MMA and net of any collateral pledged by the Fund:

Drivathve Derivatives Monecash Cash Het Amount of

Courite Fparty Liakslitins Awailable for Offsat Collateral Pledged Collatoral Fledged Derivativi

Subjuct 1o a MNA Linbilidies "
Ciiasa WA usp 22,534 UsD {E2.534)UsD =UsD =Lsp -
Go'dman Sachs 7,603 (7.603) = = -
Ry Bank of Cansda 14,555 {10,149} - - 4,406
State Sereet Bank And Trust Co 3T {14,774} = = 17,547
‘Westnac Banking Corporat'on 54,221 £2,174) - - 52,047
Total [1H] 131,880 USD {57439} USD - 5D —LsD T4AED

U Mot amount equat the et amount reos ivable fgayabie 1om (he ooantenparty in the eeent of defadn

At February 29, 2020 the Fund had entered into the following derivatives:

Asset Dervatives 'J"EE Derivatives
Deriwatives Staterment Statement
Naot Accounted for as of Aszels and of Assels and
Hadging insirements Liabilities Location Fair Valua Liabdlities Location Fair Valua
Forward Boreign currency  Unanealized appeeciaton Uareal zed degeeciation
exchange contracs o Torward fanesgn o looward fonegn
{Curremey Risk] Eiffiacy Exdhasge usD LOTRTII0  curfency exchampe usD 131,889
cankrads cantracts

The effect of derivative instruments on the Statement of Operations for the year ended February 19, 2020

Change in Unrealized
Location of Realined Appreciation or
Derlwatives Not Accounied  Gadn or |Loss) Gain or {Loss | [Depreciation] on
Tor as Hedging Instrumants  on Derivatives on Derivatives Drivativis
Nt real o gain o forward Tareign
Foi'wil'ﬁbf?:g.l'h:ll'fﬁ'f CUFEncy eRchange ool racls
encheage contracls change = undedli sid aparecation [depreciation)
{Currency Risk) on farsard Toreign currency exchange contracts. USD 1,566,287 USD 3312621
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

MAMAGEMENT FEES

The Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Serles Trust a management fee of a total of 0.65% per annum
[0.30% per annum in respect of fee for the Manager and the Investment Manager and 0.35% per annum in respect of fee
for the Subdrvestment Manager) of the Net Asset Valve acocrued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable
manthly in arrears. In addition, the Manager is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the assets of the Saries Trust for any
expenses incurred by it in the proper perfarmance of its powers and dutles as permitted under the Master Trust Deed.
During the year ended February 29, 2020, the Manager earned fees of USD 627,790 of which USD 41,501 i still
owtstanding as of February 29, 2020,

The Manager will pay the fees of the Investment Manager out of its fees. The Investment Manager will pay a fee to the
Sub-Investment Manager out of the fee received by the Investmant Manager.

CUSTOMAN AND SUB-ADMIMISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fund has a custody and accounting agreéement with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co, (the “Custodian” and “Sub-
Administrator) for which the Custodian receives a fee calculated and paid monthly based on total assets and transaction
wolurmae.,

The Custodian and Sub-Administrator is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust an adminkstration fee
[intluding transfer agent fee) calculated based on the Met Asset Walue as at each Valuation Day at the following annual
rate:

= 0,08% up to [and including) USD 250 millien;

= 0.07% up to [and including) LSD 500 million;

= DUDES awver LUISD SO0 millian.

Such administration fee is payable monthly in arrears, and subject to the minimum annual fee of USD E0,000. In addition,
the Custodian and Sub-Administrator s also entitled to receive customary safekeeping fees and transaction charges, All
out-of-pocket expenes of the Custodian and Sub-Administrator shall also be borne by thi Series. Trust.

TRUSTEES FEES

Thee Trustes is entitled to receivie out of the assets of the Series Trust a combined fiee at the rate of QUD15% per annurm of
the Net Asset Value accrued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable semi-annually in arrears, subject to a
minimum annuwal fee of USD 15,000, During the year ended February 29, 2020, the Trustes earned fees of USD 15,484, of
which USD 12,780 & still outstanding as of February 29, 2020,

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

The Agent Company is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0L05% per annum of the
Nit Assiet Valwe sccrued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. During the year
ended February 29, 2020, the Agent Company earned fees of LSD 48,292, of which USD &,724 is still outstanding as of
February 29, 2020.

DISTRIBUTOR'S FEES

The Distributar is entited to receie out of the adsets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.65% per annurm of the Net
Asset Value accrued on, and calculated as at, #ach Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears, During the year endad
February 29, 2020, the Distributor earned fees of USD 627,789, of which USD 87,415 is stil outstanding as of
February 29, 2020,

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The costs and expanses in connection with the establishment of the Series Trust and the offering of the Units, together
with the establishment of the Trust, including the costs and expenses of preparing and printing any prospectus of
explanatory brochures requined, are estimated to amount to approximately USD 180,000, Such costs and xpanses will be
amortized within the first five (5) financial years of the Series Trust unless the Trustee decides that some other methad
shall b applied. The Administrator recenvis USD 1 500 per annum for FATCA f CRS compliance services.
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund’s activities expose i to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk, interest rate risk, and currency
risk), eredit risk and liquidity risk.

Market Risk
All investments present a risk of loss of capital The Investment Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of
securities and other financial instruments.

The Fund's Investment management process is described in Note 1. The primary determinant of the Fund®s ability to meet
its objective of mid to long term capital appreciation while eaming income & dependent of the performance of the
Irvestment in the Underbyging Fund.

The Fund's investrment management process |s described in Note 1. The Fund's overall market positions are monitored on
a daily basis by the Fund's Investment Manager.

The value of the Fund's investments is affected by a number of factors, including but not limited to, changes in the wider
econamy, financial and currency markets, forelgn currency exchange rates, interest rate movements and the credit ratings
of debt issuers,

The Fund may enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts which to varying degrees regresent a market risk in
axcids of the amount reflected on the Fund™s Statement of Asets and Liabilities, The notional amount of the contract
represents the extent of the Fund's participation in these financial instruments. Market risks associated with such contracts
arise due to the possible moveménts in foreign exchange rates underlying thise instruments,

Other market and credit rigks include the possibility that there may be an illiquid market for the contracts, that the change
in the value of the contrack may not directly correlate with changes in the value of the underlying currencies or that the
countierparty to a forward contract defaults on itt obligation to perform under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
expasure to loss due to counterparty nan-performance on open forwards foreign currency exchange contracts is limited to
the unrealized appreciation inherent in such financial instruments which are recognized in the Statement of Assets and
Liabélities.

Interest Rate Risk

The Fund's exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Fund's investrnents in debt securities contracts,
Interest rate fluctuations may also affect the fair value and pricing of derivathve instruments purchased or sold short by the
Fund. The Irvestmant Manager continuously monitors the Fund's exposure to interest rate risk and the Fund’s averall
Interest sensitvity on a regular basis.

Credit Ritk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Fund would incur If the counterparties or issuers of debt securities falled
to perforen purisant to the terms of their obligations to the Fund, For exchange-traded contracts, the exchange acts as the
counterparty to specific transactions and, therefore, bears the risk of delivery te and from counterparties of specific
positions. The Fund’s managerment does not consider that credit risk related to open derivative contracts will have material
adverse effect on the financial condition of the Fund.

‘While bath the LL5. Bankruptcy Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect customer property
in the event of a failure, insalvency or liquidation of an institution, there is no certainty that, in the event of a failure of an
Institution that has custody of Fund assets, the Fund would not incur lesses due to its assets being unavailable for a period
af tirme, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, ar bath. Becawse all of the Fund's cash is in custady with a single
Institution, such losses could be significant and could materially impair the ability of the Fund to achieve its Investment
objective. The Fund & subjiect to credit risk to the extent that this institution may be unable to fulfill its obligations to repay
amounts owed,
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

FINAMCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT [eontinuwed]

Liquidity Risk

Irvestors shauld be aware that the value of Units might fall as well as rise. Investment in the Fund invahoes a degres of risk;
there can be no assurance that the Fund’s investment objective will be achieved.

The Fund is exposed to daily repurchase of its Units but management believes that the Fund has sufficient resounces to
maet the predent and foresesable needs of its butiness operations and, i necessary, the Bguidity to fund repurchases and
acheve a market position appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position B monitored continually by
managemaent to ensure that the Fund has the abilty to meet its obligations.

At February 29, 2020, substantially all the imvestments of the Fund were traded in the over-the-counter market.

Cwrrency Risk

The Fund primarily holds investments denominated in USD, which is the Fund's functional and presentational currency.
Heweaver, the Fund expects to hedge Japanese Yen, the value of the Fund's net assets attributable to JPY Class, As a result,
the Fund will incur gains/losses an its farward forelgn currency exchange contracts which are used to hedge the JFY Class
net assets to Japanese Yen, and such gains/losses are fully allocated to JPY Class. All such hedging gains/losses have bean
reflected in the total returns as presented in the Financial Highlights.

The Investrnent Manager monitors the Fund®s currency exposure on a daily basks,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGEMNCIES

In the normal course of business, the Trustee on behalf of the Fund may enter into contracts that contain a varlety of
representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The general indemnifications apply not only
to the extent such representations and warranties are untrue but abo may cover third parties such as the Fund's
Adrministrator, Auditar of Investrent Manager for claims related to the services performed for the Fund. The Trustee's
maximum exposure under any such arrangements is unknown, as exposure only arises to the extent future claims that
have not yet accurred are made against the Trustee. However, based on experience, the Trustes expects the risk of loss to
be remate.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subsequent events review up to June 26, 3020, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued,

Effective March 1, 2020 through June 26, 2020, there were subseriptions of USD 60,696 and there were redemptions of
S0 1,262,614 In respect of Class IPY Units. There were distributions of USD 475,520 in respect of Class IPY Units.

Effective March 1, 2020 through June 26, 2020, there were subscriptions of USD 827,780 and there were redemptions of
USD 639,449 in redpect of Class USD Units. There were distributions of USD 330,807 in respect of Class USD Unies,

COVID-12

On March 11, 2020 the World Health Organization declared the coronavirut disease 2019 (“COVID -197) a pandemic.
Uncertainty remains around (i) the length of the disruption, and (i) the impact of the COVID=19 on global markets.

There are no other significant events to report as they relate tothe Fund,
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2019 28
NB
2019 28
117,405,426 110,381,975 11,892,554
515 55
2,701,440 2,704,829 291,418
115,318 12,424
27,915 3,008
1,918,849 206,737
1,052,322 113,377
116,201,723 12,519,574
1,224,521 131,930
431,056 46,442
118,352 12,751
103,613 11,163
56,189 6,054
52,359 5,641
14,595 1,572
9,104 981
78 8
2,518,102 271,300
14,253 1,536
4,542,222 489,379
111,659,501 12,030,195
118,239,600 12,739,135
(2,055,556) (221, 466)
3,966,318 427,331
(8,490,861) (914,805)
111,659,501 12,030,195
7,174,360, 266
741,514 9,675
47,211,429
4,714,001 10.02 1,080
107.74
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NB
2019 28
5,044,434 543,487
5,044,434 543,487
853,798 91,988
853,797 91,988
211,184 22,753
99,440 10,714
65,677 7,076
22,922 2,470
19,703 2,123
4,145 447
76,765 8,271
2,207,431 237,829
2,837,003 305,659
(2,031,260) (218,848)
7,915,421 852,807
5,884,161 633,960
(10,987,180) (1,183,759)
(4,676,937) (503,893)
(15,664,117) (1,687,652)
(9,779,956) (1,053,692)
(6,942,953) (748,034)
107.74
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NB
2019 28
2,837,003 305,659
5,884,161 633,960
(15,664,117) (1,687,652)
(6,942,953) (748,034)
(2,281,649) (245,825)
(2,003,530) (215,860)
(4,285,179) (461,685)
101,095 9,479,050 1,021,273
436,038 4,481,179 482,802
270,488 (24,373,932) (2,626,047)
1,691,451 (17,052,748) (1,837,263)
(27,466,451) (2,959,235)
(38,694,583) (4,168,954)
150,354,084 16,199,149
111,659,501 12,030,195
107.74
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2019 28
110,381,975 110,381,975
1,052,322 1,052,322
111,434,297 111,434,297
2019 28
2,518,102 2,518,102
2,518,102 2,518,102
FASB ASC 740
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72 12,796,961 57 8,966,116
36
24,193,382 69 927,019

)
)
)
() ) )

2018 28 88,035,908 62,318,176 150,354,084
9,479,050 4,481,179 13,960,229

(24,373,932)  (17,052,748)  (41,426,680)

(2,281,649)  (2,003,530)  (4,285,179)

(6,411,305) (531,648)  (6,942,953)
2019 28 64,448,072 47,211,429 111,659,501
2018 28 910,907 5,969,414 6,880,321
101,095 436,038 537,133
(270,488)  (1,691,451)  (1,961,939)
2019 28 741,514 4,714,001 5,455,515
2019 28 86.91 10.02
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ASC  815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
ISDA 1SDA
1SDA
2019 28 MNA
MNA
(O]

Citibank NA 21,431 21,431
Goldman Sachs 918,525 (918,525)
State Street Bank And Trust Co. 678 678
Westpac Banking Corporation 111,688 (111,688)

1,052,322 (1,030,213) 22,109

2019 28 MNA
MNA
(O)

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 155 155
Goldman Sachs 2,392,873 (918,525) 1,474,348
Royal Bank of Canada 4,579 4,579
Westpac Banking Corporation 120,495 (111,688) 8,807

2,518,102 (1,030,213) 1,487,889

@
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2019 28
1,052,322 2,518,102
2019 28
8,039,097 (4,660,611)
0.65
0.30 0.35
2019 28
853,798 2019 28 56,189
0.08 2.5
0.07 2.5
0.06
80,000
0.015
15,000 2019
28 19,703 2019 28 14,595
0.05
2019 28 65,677
2019 28 9,104
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2019 28
12
13

2019 28
2019 2019 26 1,174,845
4,470,606 657,440
2019 2019 26 286,825
6,479,525 522,599
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NEUEB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2009

(Expressed In United States Dollar, unless otherwise indlcated)
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The @ccompanying notes are an integral part of these Ainancial statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2019
(Expressed In United States Dollar)
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The @ccompanying notes are an integral part of these Ainancial statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2019
{Expressed In United States Dollar)
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The @ccompanying notes are an integral part of these Ainancial statements.
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

ORGAMIZATION

NEUE Cerporate Hybrid Securitfes Fund (the "Fund™) is a series trust of the Mk AM Gifshore Funds, an cpen-anded unit
trust established by a supplemental trust dewd dated December 18, 2018 {the *Supplemental Trust Deed®), under the lows
of the Cayman Idands, Mikko AM Offshore Funds was establEshed by o master rust deed dated Ooober 15, 2042 [the
*Master Trust Deed®), under the laws of the Cayman slands and is licensed with the Coyman island s Monetary Authority
pursuant to section 4[1Ha] of the Mubudl Funds Law (2006 Revision), The Fund commenced operations on February 12,
Fl A

The Fund's assets are managed on a day to day barsis by Nido AM Global Cayman Linfted [the “Manager®), The Manager
defegares irestmant management dutes o Nkko Assst Managerment Co, Led, [the “lwestmant Manager”), The
Irvestment Manager delagates iInvessment management duties to Newberger Berman Imvestrient Adhvisers LS, [the “tub.-
Irmastrant Manager™], The adrnindstration of the Fund is delegated to Brown Brothers Hamirman & Ca. (the “Custedan®
and =Sub-Administraor”), a limited partnership g anized under the laws of the State of MNew Fork,

Tha invesement cbjective of the Fund is 1o achieve a mid tolong term totad returm through incoms and capital apprediation,
The Series Trust shall mainly imvest in both imvestment grade and non-imvestment grade hybrid securities that are issued by
o Sinancial corporate [ssuers and have boen rased by efther of Moody's, SEP or Rtch, The Highest rating from all tres of
thege agandes shall be appiied to ssdh corporate hybnid security and the average rating of the portfolic shall be BES fBaad
or above.

Corporate ybrid debt securites ane structured instnemen ts that combine both equity and Rred income characterfsiics thar
generally offer & means for isswers to bomovwe money from nvestors in retum for interest payments. Such corporate [ssoers
may Wilips Fyorid debt for 8 variery of reasons, induding bolstering thelr capdtal levels, lowering their weighted sverage
cost of capital, diversifying thelr funding scurces and managing credit ratings. Though terms and conditions hawe become
Increaningly standardized, the specific characteripdios of each instrument [such a3 paymentconditions, the ado of debr and
equity-igs features, dme frames and applicable rates) can vary.

The Serles Trust may also irvest In fxed and ficatng rate debt securides, Induding bonds, Tssued by governments and
g overmment related entities,

Derivative instrumentswill be vsed for efficient porfiolio management and)for investment purposes only.

The asets of the Series Trust may be held in one or more comendes, and the Seres Trust willl, in prindiple, engage in
currency hedging betwesn the curmency of denomination of each Qass (LS, Dolfar for USD Class and Japaness Yen for JFY
Oass) and the osrrency of the Investments in the underdying porticiio, prowided, howewver, that such hedging for 1FY Oass
nrury be perfoomad through the LS. Collar,

Linder tha terms of the Supplamental Trust Deed and thie Master Trust Deed, QIBC Bank and Trust Comparry (Cayman)
Lirrited [the “Trustes™ and the “Administrater”] Isnamed as Trustes of the Fund.

The Masager sppanted Mitsbishi UF) Morgan Stacdey PB Securities Co, Lbd 1o act &8 Agent Comparny (the “Agent
Company™) and the Manager appoinpad Mitsubishi UR) Morgan Stanley PB Sequrities Co, bd 1o act as Distributor [the
“Ciatributer”) of Linits in Jagan o such other person o institution & mey be appcinted &3 distributer of the Sades Trest by
the Marager from time 1o dms,

SUMBAARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

Tha Fund is 8r insestment Company that foll ows the accounting and reporting guidance in FASE Acccunting Standands
Codificadon #44,

Lise ef Estimates

Tha sccompanying firandal stasterments have been prapared in socordance with sccounting prindples generslly accep tad in
the Uriined Saates of Armerica |*LL5 GAAFT), The preparaton of Tnancial statementsin adcordance with LL5 GAAP requires
the Furkd’s ranagement to make sstimates and assurnpiions thae affect the reported amountsof assets and lisbilites and
disclosres of contingant assets and liabilites st the date of the finandal satements and the reported ameounts of
reeriues and axperies during the reporting period. Actusl results, induding the utimate amount redlized upon the mle of
far wakued investments, could differ from shose estimates and such dEiferances may be sgnilficant,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

SUMBARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES | continugad)

Bowis of Ascounting

Security and contrachsa ransactions are recorded on oo tradefcontract-dabe basis inberest income | recorded on an
affective weld basls, net of any applicable withholding tae Interest sapence and other expenses ane recor ded on an aconual
bags Realized galns and |osses from security Eransactions are computed on the basls of the average oost of the securities
wild or covered. Changes in the widuation of imestrments are recorded in the Statement of Operations as unrealized
appreciation or depreciation.

Valuation of lavestments

Bords gnd cther debt sacurities, ncduding restricted securitias jother than short-term obligations but induding Heted
isses) are falr walued at their Lt sale prics in the princdpal markst In which such sscoites are normally traded, on the
barss of valuations fumished by a pricing service, use of which has been approved by the vestment Manager, or if no sle
hars cccumed, the bld price on the valuation date as prosfded by brokerswhio are market malkers in the secuites. Al debt
seourities with less than 12 months to maturity dates, In prindple shall be fair valued using an amortized cost effected by an
affective yeld acoumudatedfamortizadion method o their maburity date with adjustments based on omparison with
market prices as reguired.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value messurements and disclosures under ULS GAAF, the Fund
diachones e Fair value of its imwestrments in a hisrardhy that prioritizes the inputs o vifuation tadhnicuses wied B megsure
the far walue. The hisrardy gives the Kighest prodty tovaluations based upon uradiusted quoted prices in active markets
lor identical assets or Habilities [Level 1 measurement] and the lowest prority to valustions based upon unchaarvabls
inputs that are sgrificant to the valuation [Lewd 3 meamrements). The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value
ey archny o Follaws:

®  Lavel 1 = Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for Identical Investments that the Fund
s thie alility o Bocess BT the risasusdrment data:

= Level @ = Inpuls other than quoted prices that are sigrificant and cbsenvable for the asset o liability elther
diret By or indirécly, indwding inputs in markets that arenct consdared to be active;

®  Level 3= Irputs that are sgrificant and uncheenmbils,

Irgaats are used in apphying the varous viluaion technigues and broadly refer 1o the assumpi ons that market pardopants
e b s valudti on dedson s, incheding eamamptions about risk Enputs mey indude price information, spedfic snd broad
credit data, liquidiny statistics, and other factors. A inancal instrurment's eval within the Tar valus hisrarchy ishased upon
the |owest lavel of sny irput that s sgnificant to the fale value rmessurement, However, the determination of what
comintes “obaenvable” reguires significant fudgrment by the invesimens Manager, The imesment Manager considers
cheerwdle data o ba market data wiich is readdy avdlable, regularty dlsributed or updated, relable and veri fable, not
proprietary, and provided by independent seurces that are actively imedved in the relevant markst. The categorization of a
financlal instrumant within the hierarchy is based wpon the pricing transparency of the Irstrument and doesnot necessanly
ecorrespond bo the Irvestrrent Manazer's perceived risk of that irstrumant,

Irrvpirmants whose valees e based on the quated rrarkat priced in active markets, and therafore classRad within Level 1,
windd Imclude actively raded equities, certaln LS government and soversign chigations, and certalin monsy market
securities The Imestrment Manager would not sdusl the quoted price for such {nstrurnents, ever in siustions where the
Fund held a large position and a sale could reasonaibly irpact the quoted price,

Irvasbments that trade in markets that are not considered 1o be active, but are valwed based on quoted market prices,
depler quatstions or alternative pricng sourors spporied by chservable inputs are clessfiad within Level 1. Thess indude
Invesiment-gracde debt securites, shortgenm invesments and forward foreign currercy exchange contracts As Levsl 2
Ewestrrents indude pesitions that ore not raded in active merkets and/for are subject 1o trensfer reltrictions, valutions
oy Dl usted to reflect illiquidity andfor non.transferabilicy, wiich are generally based on available market information,

Irastments dassiBed within Level 3 hawe sigréficant uncboervable inputs, a6 they would ads infrequently, Leval 3
fnstrurnents would indude asses-backed securties and collsterslized morgage chiigations As obsarvable prices are not
avalabia for those securities, the Fund wioadd wies valiation technigues to derive the (i valus,

The inputs or ma thadology used for valuing securities are not necessanty an indication of the sk ssociated with investing
in thre surites
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 20019

SUMBAARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |centinged)

Valuation of lnvestments [eontinued)

The fallowing mble presents the finandal instrumeants carriad on the Staterment of Assets and Labilities by caption and by
level within the valustion herarchy as of February 18 D019, Further dessifications of the finandal instruments are
presenbed in tha Portfolio of investrments, There wars o rnovements betwesen levels during the yeer,

Aceotz st Fair Valua Far Walua st
Lavel 1 Lova 2 Lavel3 Fabruary 3, 2019
Fiwwd Incom e Secur fties [5] - UsD 110,381,975 s - UsE  LL03BLATE
Faeveard Forsign Cuiancy
Exchare Contrazts = L052,322 = LOSLI2Y
Total ) - UsD 108,434,797 ) - U 111A434,297
Liabilities nn Fair Value Fuir Value st
Lavel 1 Laval 2 Lovd 3 Fabruary 3, 2019

Forwand Foreign Durrency

Exchurge Con byt L0 - LD 2,518,102 I - i) 2,518,102
Total IS0 = LI50 LSUR 102 LISl = [7e] 51RO
Foreign Currengy Tronal ation

Mzets and Babilities beld in oumencies obher than United States Doflar (U507 or the “Functional Currency™) are transiated
to the Functonal Currency at the rane of exchange prevafiing at the finandal staterneni date, Inooms and sxpenses ae
trandiated ot the rate of excharge prevalling at the date on which the Inoome or expense s incumed, Realized and
unrealized gans and losees aridng cn foresgn currency wransactions are included in the Statement of Operations in the
periad inowhich they oo,

The Fund does not fsclate that portion of the resuts of operations remdiing from changes in foreign exchange rages on
fvwestments from the Ructustions arsing rom changes in market peioes of secuities held, Sudy fuchastions are induded
with the met realized and unreall pad galn or |oss from Imvestments.

Inpome Taxes

Uindar the cumrent faws of the Cayman Idands, there are no incomes, withhiolding, capital gaing or other taxes payable by
the Fund. I certaln unisdictions other chan thie Cayman idands, forefgn teees may be withheld at source on dhidends and
interest received by the Fund. Capital gains derived by the Fund in such jurisdictions generaily will be exempt from foreign
Engomae o withholding taeoes af sourcs, The Fund intends to conduct it alfairs sech that It will not be subject to incomss b
i vy jurfsdicion, Asa rewult, no prowision for income tawes has been made In the Snancial satements Unitholders may
b taxed on their proportonats shane of the Fund's txbasis income based on thelr indvidua! droumaances.

Tha Fund fallows the authoritative guldance on accounting for and disclomere of uncermainty in tax positons |Rnanal
Aopcunting Standards Board ("FASE") - Accocunting Standards Codificadion 7404, which reguines the Manager to determine
wheather a taxn podtion of the Fund is more likely than not to be sustsined upon exmination by the applicable tanng
authority, induding resclution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical mesits of the position,
For tax positions meeting, the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized in the: finondal staternents is
reduced by the langest benedlt that has a gr eater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized wpon Wiimabe setderment
with the rdevant taxing authority. The Manager hin determined that there is minimal or no effect on the finandal
satermaents being under this authoritative guidance.

Forward Foraiga Curreney Exchonge Controcts

The Fund masy enter into forward forsign currency =kchange contracts to hedge aganast foragn cumency excharge rate
rigs on all or & portion of non-Us0 denomrinated Imvestments or for effigient portfolio management purposes. When
enbaring into & forward foreign umenoy exchange contract, the Fund agrees to receive or deliver a fived quantity of
foreign currency for an agreede-upon price on an agreed future date, These contracts are valued dally, and the Fund®s net
equity therain, representing urreafized q)predd:'crﬂdmclabm' on the contracts & messred by the difference
between the forward foreign curency exchange rates at the dates of entry Intg the contracts and the forward rates &t the
raporting date, isincluded in the Statermnent of Assets and Lishilites Realized and unraslized gans and |osses sra indudad
in the Statement of Operations.

These Instnements Irvolve market sisk, oredlt risk, or both kinds of risks, Tn excess of the amount reccgnized in the
Statement of Assets and Uabllities. Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to mesat the terms of their,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

SUBABARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Forword Forelgn Curmency Enchonge Controoty {continued]

contracs and from meverment in currancy and securities values and interest rates in addton to the class level hedging,
the Fund had resiized gains of LS0E,966,116 on 72 forward foreign turren oy exchangs contracts during the yesr with an
avernge notional of UBD 12,756,961 and an verage Derm o maturity of 57 days. The Fund olso had realized losses of LISD
ST, 009 on D6 farward formign currancy axchangs contraces hald st the Class IPY Hadgad lewel during the pear with an
meerage netional of UISD 24,193,382 and an averags termn o maturiny of 69 days

Cash ond Fareign Curren &y
Cash and foreign curmency comgrises all currency held with Brown Brothers Hardman & Co., and overnight and ather shorg
tarm placernenis with cther financal instiutons,

UNITS

The reat s s of the Fund are dividad into /2 Oess Undts and LSO Oass Units The Urics are denominated in Lo anee Yen
ard Unitad Soates Collar, 1PY Oass Units and LED Class Linits are avalable 1o an aligible lmmstor whio is any parson,
corporation or entity which is not [ & dtizen o resident of the LS, & parmerdhip organized o existing in the LIS, o any
corperation, rust of cther ensity organi zed under the laws of or exdsting in the US; i} resident o domicled in the Caynan
Idands [aeduding any chjact of a charitable trust or power or an asempted or nonresdent Cayman tdands companyd: [T
unable to wbscribe for o held Units without viclating appicable lsws, o (W) & custedfan, nomines, or tnestes for any
person, corporation o antity described in (3} bo {ITT) above,

Tha Manager may determine boissee one o mone classes of Units of the Fund without pricr notice to or verltten consent of
the Unithalders,

Al of the net sssets atiributable to JIPY Qass Units and LED Class Units are held by ane Unitholder,

IFY Class USD {lass Tetsl Fusd

Balance st February 28, 2018 L EROISS0E U0 BRI USD E50,354084
SubricrpEians during Sha yeir SAT050 44817 13,560,200
Bedemations durfrg the yeor (24372851 (1705 (41,4880
Destritutions [2,2B1,643] (2003552 14,565, 175)
Mgt decresns in et St el ting from apenaisng [5:411,305] (531548 [5,342,953)
Bt Acoets af Py 28, 2019 UL GLA4B07) USD AXIILAM LD [BLESAS0L
Bumbeer of Uindes in fssue ot Februry 26, 2018 210,907 5,960,414 B0, 1
ety damud durieg thee Y 100,095 435,038 517,133
Uit rodwsmed dudng th ysor [ZT046E] [1,551,451) 1561939
Mumibies of Undts in fsme ok Febeuary 28, XS TAL5LA A, 714001 5455515
Bt Azset Vlue per Unit ot Febeuary 3, 2015 s a1 UsD 1002

Surbroriptions for Units

LISD e Linits were first issuad af ar inigal Meee price of LED 10,00 par Uit JPY Oass Units wanas firsy isssed ot an inital
st price of JPF 10,000 per Unit. On and after Initdal dosing day, the minimum inldal subscriptdon for LISD Olass Urits per
subseriber i8 10 Linits of mhore, and in rrulbples of 1 Unit thevealter, The mirimur initial subsciiption for JPY Oass Units
per webseniber i51 Unitor mone, and inmuldiples of 1 Uinits therealier,

The MNanagsr may wive oF change the mirsrmum intal and addtonal abseription amaunts st famh above in its sole
diseration from tirmes o e,

Soles Charge
I addidon o the sbsription price, the applicant thall pay & sales charge caloulsted ot up 1o 3K (extiuding Bry tax
applicable] of the purchass price, 1o the Distributor.

Linft Redemptions
Tha Furd recogrepes rederrations in accondance with the authoritative guidere on Estinguisheng liskaides from equiny,
Redamptions, whathar mpressed o5 Lnited States Doller, Japanesa Yan or Unts, are recogrited s lisbities when sach of
the United States Doller, Japaness Yen and Unit amounts requested in the redemption notice becomes fized, which
generally may oocur aither &t the time of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of & Fachl year, depending on the
raature of the reguest As 8 rewdt, redernptions paid after the end of the yaar, but based upon year and Mel akeels afe
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

UNITS |eentinwead)

Uiait Redemptions {continaed]
raflected &5 rederptions payable af February 28, 2019, There were USD 421,056 of redemptions payable as a1
February 28, 2019, inchaded B Peyable for Lints sedesrned in the Statement of Assata and Lisilites

Repurchame of Units

Each Lrsthodder rray redu oot & repurchede of Urits by the Fund unless repurchases have besn suspended by the Manager,
Units will be repurchased dally at the Met Asset Value per Linlt as at the relevant Repurchase Day {each Valuathon Day, or
fuch other diy o days as the Manager ray from tene o e determing in respect of the Senes Trustl, There will be no
repurchase charge on repurchages of Unitsheld over five years,

Compedsory Rademption

In the ewvent that the Trustes or the Manager shall determine that any Units of any Oess of & Saries Trust are being held by
of for the benefit of & parson who is not an Eligible inwestor for such Sevies Trust o thit swch boding would cause the
Trast or the Series Trust tobe required toregister, be subject to o or wiclate the laws of amy jurisdiction, or if the Trustee
o the Manager has readon ta doubt the legitimacy of the sourcs of ronies uied to fund the whscriplion of purchase of
axh Units, or for whatever reason fwhich may not be disclosed by the Trustes or the Manager to Unitholders) that the
Trustes o the Manager considers appropriate at its absclute discration hiving regard to the interests of the Linitholders of
the ral svant Class or the Unitholders of the Series Trust s a whals, then the Manager, after consuitafion with the Trustes,
may ditect the holder thereof to sl [subject to the prosisions described below in the saction headad "Transler of Units")
axh Unite within 19 days and provide to the Trustes and the Monager envidence of such sale, falling which the Manager
iy redesm much Lnits,

Terminotion of the fumd
Lipen tavrrination, the Mansgss will reslize ol the assats of the Fund, and after paying cut of retaining adeguate prowsion
for all lishilities propery payable and retaining provision for the costs of the termination, the Trustes shall distribute the
procseds of that realization to the Lnithalders proportionately to their respective interests in the Fund as of the daes of
tarmination of the Fund.

Distribwrbions to Unithol ders

The Manager may, in its sole discretion, declare disributions from Jure 2047, Chributions will be declared cn aach
Clstribartion Record Date and calodated on sach Ex-Dissribution Date, Distribution Period is n pericd commencing from the
cdendar day following the preceding Distribution Record Date and ending on ard induding the Digribution Record Date,
Tha disributions will ba padd en the relevant Distribution Payrment Date, provided that such srncunt (il eyl declared with
respect th asch Jass of Lits shall only be paid cut of the Seried Trust®s net income, redlized and unrasizsd capital gains
v aery distribatable funds of the Serfes Trust attributable o such Oass of Units is deverrrined by tha Manager,

Tha declaration of disributions to Unithelders reduces the Oass Level Met Asset Value per Unit witheut any comesponding
thange in the number of Jass Level Units per Unitholder, This réesdts in a Unitholder’s overall investment in the Fund
being reduced, 0 addition, any dsbutions during 8 yesr which &0a in exoess of tha Rund’s net increase in nal ssecs
resulting from apearations resd s in a portion of the dstribution being returmn of capital.

The amount of distributians, if amy, will be datarminad by the Mansger in its sole Fsmetion, and no représentation o
guarantes is rmads that a dstribution will ba mads in respect of sach or any Distributien Perdod,

Capitalization

The Mat Azt Vablue per Uit (s caloulated for each Mirq Cary feach Vauation Day, or such other day or days as the
Nanager ray fram time b0 tims deterrring in respact of e Saries Truat), by dhiding the @iferenos in valuse batween the
Fund s assets and labilites {including acorued fees and sxpanses of the Fund) by the nurmber of Units cutstanding.

The Trust Deed stpulates that the number of Units 1o be issued in the Fund shafl be unlimited s the Manager shall
detarnina and shal be without par value,

DERIWATIVE FINANCLAL INSTRIUMENTS

Mcoounting Stand ards Codffication B 5-10-50 raquires dischosures sbout derivative instruments and bedging acthitias, it
raguires et the Fund disclose: a] how and wiy 80 entity uses devivative instrurmenis, b how derivative nstrumants and
related hadged iterns are accounted for and <] how daduative insruments and related hadged itams affect an evtity's
financisl positen, nancial performancea and cash flows,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)

The Fund orarsacts Tonward dedvative instruments primanily for hedging purposes with sach nstrument's peimany risk
expotir & beirg lorsign aathangs gk The forward fareign aurency sschange contracts hald by the Fund da not qualily as
haedges for popounting purp oses under the reguirements of ASC 315 The fair value of these deivative insruments is
inclded in the Statement of Asats and Lisbilices with changss in fair valus reflected s redized gaing/floses) o net
changa in unseall ped apprecistion fdeprecation] on derdvatives within the Smaement of Operations (Mote 2).

The Fund may enter into Bn Inemational Sweps and Dedvative Asscdation, Inc, Master Agresment (“I50A Misber
Agreement”) with [t counterparties In order o mitgats counterparty risc The 1504 Master Agresment Is typically
g ctiaed by cha Fund amd its counterpardes, conmining the bi-lateral terms ard condidons for all subseguent derivative
trarsacong, The 504 Master Agrasment allows fior tee netting of all amnounts owad to or due from counterparty into a
single netpayrient il & oredicevant or defedt should aeeur,

The Fund hars eleched to not offset fair value receivables and payables for derfvative contracts on the face of the Statement
of Assatsand LisbEies

At February 28, 3049 the Fund had entered into the following derivasive asse s by counteparty net of amounts svallable
fior offsst undar & Master Natting Agreement {*MNA"]) and net of any collateral recaived by the Fund:

Dar bt L ERRS Dardvatives Moercash Cash Hat dmourt of
Counterpery Subjedt to-s MMA  Swvadsble for OMset Collmersl Resarved Colluteral Bassived Deivstive Assets’
Chibarac NA [T+ HNATIAD ] -Lsh B ] 21438
(e e Sl SLE 535 {SEBS525) - - -
Sxate Sereet Bark And Trust Qo GrE = - - ErE
Whirilaat Bankling Conporation ill,668 (ii688 - w -
Total Usn 1 F2TUSD 213 UED =\sD = \uso 2103

At February 28, 2019 the Fund had entered into the following derlvative Habili des by counter par ty net of amounts svallable
fer effpat under B MNA and net ol sy collatersl pladged by the Fund:

Dwrbative Duaativer Morrcash Cash Hat domourt of

Tl pEety Liskiimies Bunilwbla for OHzat Collutamnl Pladgad Collutars! Pladged Daikativg

Suilact o s MAA Lishilieias'
Brown firothers Hardman B o, LED LRSLISDY =50 =50 =L 155
‘Galdman Sachs 2,352,673 [ L FLT - - LaM mE
W oyl Bk of Conads 4,573 - = = 4,573
Wiestnse Barking Corparation 120405 {04 L6RR) = = BT
Totsl USD  ZaIB 10200 [1,030,213)USD — D “USD_ 1asv83s

Vbt aont el the ret amound mcenniEeypaysbie frors thie coenterpadty in the st of deded

At February 28, 2013 the Fund had antered inta the falonwing darivatives:

A gt D heirtives mmm
Darivutiver Bk @k Saternant
Mot Accounted for as of Basetd Bhel ol Asdats nd
Hedgirg instrursants Linbdithes Location Fair Vsksa Liabilithes Lostion Fair Valus
Forward forsign curmency  Unreslized spprecistion Lirirgadiped depredation
tachang e ConTradts on ferward foreign on forvwand fomign
{Currmney Rig) crrir sy onchangn Lo LOSLAZY  surnincy txchargs 6 2,518,102
fonirach fontrads

The effect of derivative ingtrurnents on the Smterment of Operationds for the year ended Febauaey I8, 3015:

Changa in Ure salized
Loostion of Feslaed Appradstion o
Darbathea: Mot Accounted  Gainor [Loss) Galn or [Losz] [Brogr edation] on
L a1 Hedping Indtruments  on Dervsthves &n Dearhvatived Dardrsiegd
Pt revad Tl oess oo Peewene d fDreign
Fonwdnd laragn Surmendy vty Ehangi S50 REET
Exchange condracis shange Iniunrgell jod sppredation fdepredation)
{Currenoy i) o forwerd foredgn ourmency exchange contracis  USD BO35.09F LD [ EEDEL L)
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

MIANAGERENT FEES

The Managar is entithed b recaive out of the sisets of the Saries Trust a manggemant fae of & totsl of OLGSH par annum
{9,305 per anmum in regpact of fee for the Manager and the Invesment Manag e and 0.35% per annom in respect of fee
fior the Sub-investment Manager] of the MNet Asset Yalue scorved on, and caloulsted & at, sach Yalustion Doy and payable
mionthiy in amears. In addition, the Manager is also entitled to be refmbuerssd oot of the assets of the Series Trust for amy
eupanges incurred by it in the proper performances of its powers and duties as parmitted under the Master Trust Deed.
During the year ended February 28, 3015, the Manager eamed fees of LISD BS3,798 of which UsD 36,188 s st
outstanding as-of February IB, 2005,

The Manager will pay the fees of the Investment Maneger cut of its fees. The Investment Manager will pay a fee to the
Sub-inuestmeent Manager out of the fee received by the Impstment Manager,

CUSTODMAN AMD SUB-ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

Tha Fund has a custody and accounting agreermant with Brown Brothess Hamiman & Cou (the “Custodan® and “Sub:
Adrministrator”) for which the Custodian receives a fee millated and pald monthly based on total assets and transaction
vl

The Custodian and Sub-Admirdstrator is entided Bo receive out of the assets of the Sares Trust an admenistration fas
linduding trarsfer agent fes) calculated based on the MNat Asset Value o ot asch Vaustion Day at the fallowing anrual
rakes

- (08 up to [and indeding ) USD 250 million;

= QU0 up to fand Induding ) LSE 800 mitilon;

- (06 over LISD 500 million.

Such administration fes [z payable monthly in arrears, and subject to the minfmum annual Fee of USD 30,000, in addition,
the Custodian and Sub-Administrator is also entited to recelve customary mfdoseping fees and transaction charges. All
out-of pocket expenses of the Qustodian and Sub-Administrator shail aso be bome by the Serjes Trust.

TRUSTEES FEES

The Trustes (s entided to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a combined fee at tve rate of 0.015% per annum of
the Mt Agmet Value soorued on, and cafculated o3 at, each Valuation Day and payable semi-annealy in arrears, subject toa
minimum annyal fee of US0 15000 During the year ended February 28, 2019, the Trustee eamed fees of USD 145 103, of
which LSO 14,585 is stifl outstanding & of Februany ZE, 2019,

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

The Agent Company 5 entitled B receive dut of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0LO5% per armum of the
et Amet Value accrued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Doy and payable quarterly In arrears. During the year
ended Febrisary 28, 2014, the tgent Company earned fees of LSD 65,677, of which USD 4104 [s st cutstanding a5 of
February 28, 1015,

DHSTRIBUTCHR'S FEES

The Cistribuber is entided to recsive out of the mssets ol the Sedes Trust & fee ot the rate of 065% per annurn of the Met
Asset Value aconeed on, and cafoulated o af, excth Vaduation Doy and poyable guarterly in arears. Ouring the year ended
February 28, 2019, the Distributdr esmed faes of LSD 853,757, of which USD 11E252 is stll outstending as of
February 28, 2019,

OTHER FEES AMND EXPENSES

The costs and expenses In connection with the estabiishrment of the Sedes Trust amd the offering of the Units, together
with the sstablishment of the Trug, including the costs and expendes of preparing and printing any prospectus: or
asplanatory brochures reguired, are estimated to smount o approdimately USD 180,000, Sudn costs and sspenses will be
amortized within the first five (5) finoncid years of the Series Trust unles the Trutes deddes thak some other method
shall b appEied, The Adrmiristrator receives LSD 1 500 per anvum (o FATOA [ ORS compliance senioes,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

FIMANCIAL RISH MANAGEMENT

The Fund's activities sxpose it to o varlety of finandal risks: market risk finduding price risk, interest rate fsk, and currency
risk), cradit risk and Fquidiey risk.

el okt Bk
Al investmsnis present a ek of loss of capital. The Irvestrsen T Manager moderates this risk through o careful selecion of
sequrifes and other financial instruments,

The Fund's irvestmant management process 15 describad In Mote 1. The prmary deterrinant of the Fund's abllity o meez
is chjective of mid 1o long verrm capital appreciation while saming incoms is dependent of the performance of the
westment I the Underiying Fund,

The Fund's Immestment managemant process fs described in Noge 1, The Fund’s overall market positions are monitored on
o daly bass by the Fund's Irvestment Manager.

The walue of the Fund’s impestments is affected by a number of factors, iInduding but not limited o, changes in the wider
aconcry, Tnandal snd asrrengy markets, foreign currency gxchange rates, InTerest rate mowdman 5 and the cedit ratings
of debt ismsers,

The Fund may enter Into forward foreign curmency exchange contracts whith to varying degrees represent a markost risk in
axoess of the smount reflactad on the Rind's Staternant of Aisats and Lisbilities The notional amaunt of the contract
represents the sxtent of the Fund's participaton In these Finandal instruments, Markost risos asscciated with such conftracts
arise dus bo the posible movernents in foreign enchange rates underlying thess instruments

Oither mariket and credit ks indude the posbility that thers may be an liiquid markest for the contracts, that the change
in the value of the contract may not directly comelate with changes In the valus of the underlying curendes o that the
oounterparty bo-a forward contract defaults om its cbligation to perfonm under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
eaposur e boloss due o countenpanty non-performance on open Forwards forefgn aurrency exchange contracts is limibed to
the unrealized appreciation nherent in auch finandal instruments which are reccgnized in the Statement of Assets and
Liaksili e

Interest Rote Risk

The Fund”s exposume (o changes in inberest rates refabes primarily to the Fund'sinvestiments in debt seorities contracts.
Irbarest rate fluchistions miy also alfect the far walue and priding of derivative instruments purchased or sold shart by the
Fund. The imvestment Manager continuoudy monitors the Fund’s expomure to interest rate risk and the Fund's owerall
interest sendtivity on a regulor basis

Cradit Risk

Cradit risk represents the potentisl loss that the Fund would incur if the counterparties or issuers of debit securities laled
b parionem puriusant to the terms of their cibligations 1o the Fund, For aschange-raded contrasts, the exchange acts as the
counterparty to sedfic transactions and, therefore, bears the rise of delivery to and from counterpariies of pecific
positions The Fund's management dossnot consider that credinnisk related to open derivative contracts will hiwe material
acheerse effect on the fnandal condition of the Fund,

‘While both the UL, Bankrup oy Code ard the Securities imvestor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect cusomen property
bn the evant of 8 inlure, irsclvensy or liguidaton of an imsduton, there is no certanty that, in the event of a failurs of an
Inginidon that has custody of Fund assets, the Fund would not Inour losses due 1o (ts acsets being unavaltable for a pericd
of dree, Wltmately bess than Gl recovery of its essets, or both, Because dl of the Fund®s cash is in oustody with a single
ngiudon, such losses could be significant and could materatly Impalr the abdity of the Fund to achieve ltsimwestment
clpretive, The Fund i subject to oredit rigk to the sxtent that tes instiution may be unable to il its chligetions 1o repay
AUt cwed,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2009

FIMANCIAL RISH MANAGEMENT [continu ed)

Liguiiefity Risk
Imvestors should be aware: that the value of Units might fall aswell a5 rse. Investment in the Fund insclves a degree of risk;
thava can Lo assrance that the Rand's imnestrnent objective will be acniesed,

The Furd if eaposad to daly repurchase of s Linits but management beliovss that the Fund has sulficdent rescurces 1o
meet the present and foresssable needs of Its business cperations and, I necessary, the lquidity to fund repurchases and
achisve B markst postion appropriately reflecting a smaller copital base, This position B monitored continually by
management o ensre that the Fund has the abllity to meat its cbligations.

At February 25, 2019, substantally a8 the Imvestrments of the Fund weere traded in the over-the counter marker.

Currency Risk

The Fund primadity holds imestments denominated in LS0, which is the Fund's functional and presentabional currency.
Howarver, the Fund expects tohaedge Japanese Yen, the value of the Fund’s net assots attriburabie to JPY Qe As aresuly,
the Fumd will incur gainsfosses on its forward forelgn aurrency exchange contracts which are uzed to hedge the Y Jass
nel assats to Japanaese Yen, and such gaingflcsses ane fully allciated to JPY Qass Al such hedging gainsfosses have been
refi ected in the total retumns aspresented in the Fnandal Highlights.

The Investment Manager monitors the Fund's cumency esposune on o dally bads
COMPMITMENTS AND COMTINGENCIES

In the normal gourse of business, the Trustes on behalf of the Fund may enter inte contracts that contain a vardety of
representations and waranties and which provide general indemnifications. The ganeral indemmifications apply not only
b the extent such representations and warmanties are wntres but also may cover thind parties such as the Fund's
Administraton, Auditor or Investment Manager for dlalms related to the services performed for the Fund. The Trustes's
maxmam exposire Lnder any such arargements b5 unknown, a5 epoure only arses 1o the extent future dalms that
hawe nok yet ocoumed are made against fve Trustes. Howsever, based on experience, the Trushes expecits the rise of loss to
b remoite,

SUBSECRIENT EVENTS

Managerment parformed & mb sequent events review up to June IB, 2005, which is the date the finandal ststements were
mrailatie o be ipmwed.

Effective March 3, 2009 through June 28, 3019, there were subscriptions of USD 1,174,845 and there were redempiions of
LISDy, i 70 B0 in respect of Oaes IFY Uinits. There were distributions of USD 657,440 in respect of (ass IFY Units,

Effective March 1, 20149 through June 26, 2019, there were subsoriptions of LSD 286 825 and theve were redemptions of
LSDE,475,525 in respect of s USD Units, Thare were distributions of LB 522,509 in respect of Class LED Units

There are no other significant swants toreport a3 they relate bo the Fund,

114/181



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020
154,458,012.29 16,641,306,244
81,031,451.90 8,730,328,628
73,426,560.39 7,910,977,616
2,783,624
503,070
10.26 1,105

9,624
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MA02109-3661 40
40 Water Street Boston, MA02109-3661 U.S.A
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235,777,282,595
2,802,064,491
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2020 31
2020 2019
5,628,385 606,402 3,938,928 424,380
2,851,607 307,232 3,190,108 343,702
70,125 7,555 71,250 7,676
8,550,117 921,190 7,200,286 775,759
8,550,117 921,190 7,200,286 775,759
148,200 15,967 146,480 15,782
79,840 8,602 124,271 13,389
1,643,547 177,076 2,462,391 265,298
1,871,587 201,645 2,733,142 294,469
480,000 2020 31
2019 31
480,000 480,000 51,715 480,000 51,715
6,198,530 667,830 3,987,144 429,575
6,678,530 719,545 4,467,144 481,290
8,550,117 921,190 7,200,286 775,759
17 2020
129332
107.74
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2020 31
2020 2019
5,628,385 606,402 3,938,928 424,380
2,851,607 307,232 3,190,108 343,702
70,125 7,555 71,250 7,676
8,550,117 921,190 7,200,286 775,759
1 0.108 1 0.108
1 0.108 1 0.108
8,550,118 921,190 7,200,287 775,759
148,200 15,967 146,480 15,782
79,840 8,602 124,271 13,389
1,643,547 177,076 2,462,391 265,298
1,871,587 201,645 2,733,142 294,469
480,000 2020 31
2019 31
480,000 480,000 51,715 480,000 51,715
6,198,531 667,830 3,987,145 429,575
6,678,531 719,545 4,467,145 481,290
8,550,118 921,190 7,200,287 775,759
17 2020
129332
107.74
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2020 31
2020 2019
19,213,975 2,070,114 22,335,065 2,406,380
19,213,975 2,070,114 22,335,065 2,406,380
(1,183,017) (127,458) (1,276,979) (137,582)

(15,585,538)  (1,679,186) (19,056,557)  (2,053,153)
(15,764) (1,698) (20,971) (2,259)
(228,510) (24,620) (161,343) (17,383)
(17,012,829)  (1,832,962) (20,515,850)  (2,210,378)

2,201,146 237,151 1,819,215 196,002
10,240 1,103 (53,798) (5,796)
10,240 1,103 (53,798) (5,796)

2,211,386 238,255 1,765,417 190,206

2,211,386 238,255 1,765,417 190,206

2,211,386 238,255 1,765,417 190,206

107.74
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2020 31
¢ >y >y ¢ >y > c > o D
480,000 51,715 2,221,727 239,369 2,701,727 291,084
1,765,417 190,206 1,765,417 190, 206
31 480,000 51,715 3,987,144 429,575 4,467,144 481,290
2,211,386 238,255 2,211,386 238,255
31 480,000 51,715 6,198,530 667,830 6,678,530 719,545
107.74
2020 31
2020 2019
2,201,146 237,151 1,819,215 196,002
10,240 1,103 (53,798) (5,796)
2,211,386 238,255 1,765,417 190,206
339,626 36,591 1,074,174 115,732
(861,555) (92,824)  (1,182,743) (127,429)
1,689,457 182,022 1,656,848 178,509
1,689,457 182,022 1,656,848 178,509
3,938,928 424,380 2,282,080 245,871
5,628,385 606,402 3,938,928 424,380

107.74
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2020 31
309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2020 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
IFRS 16 2019
2020 31 2019 31

124/181



~ A NN

N W VS

IFRS 15
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IFRS 9
IFRS 9

2018

1AS 39

IFRS 9

2018
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2018

IAS 18

)
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2020 31 2019 31
100
2020 31 2019 31
2020 31 2019 31
30

126/181



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

JPY GBP SGD
2020 31
2019 31 10
2020 2019
JPY 36,000 54,000
GBP 76,000 95,000
SGD 15,000 56,000
EUR 2,000
2020 31 2020
5,628,385 5,628,385
2,851,607 2,851,607
70,125 70,125
148,200 148,200
79,840 79,840
1,643,547 1,643,547
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2019 31 2019

3,938,928 3,938,928

3,190,108 3,190,108

71,250 71,250

146,480 146,480

124,271 124,271

2,462,391 2,462,391

2020 31 2020 31
2020 31 a
@ ®) ®

) ¢ ¢ C
4,939,036 686,456
2,265,335 991,951

6,464,511 179,247
1,801,198 137,386
115,458 7,001
16,010,138 179,247 1,822,794
2019 31 2019 31
2019 31 a
@ o) ®

) ¢ ¢ ¢
4,735,296 339,775
9,478,941 1,253,147
2,634,320 307,671
2,071,148 549,065
136,852 12,733
19,056,557 2,462,391

(a
(b
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MNIEKO® AM GLOBAL CAYALAN LTD
CONSOLIDATEDRD STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT M MARCH a0
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e

15935008
1 1940,108
71.2%

TAML2EE

T200,256

146480
124,271
246230

Pste 200
Asseis
Cmrrend Assets
Cash aid cash equivalmts -1 LG b
Accoim s Fecervabile 2 BRY GOT
Accrued moome end propaid expense T0125
Tolal Currenl Asaels 8,550,117
Total Mon- Currenid Assels
Tolal Assels ] 8.550,117
Liabilities aml Eqisity
Current Liabilities
Accruod expenscs amd deferred income 5 148 2040
Accoumls payable THEAD
Amounis peyable 10 group underiakngs L 1543547
Tatal Current Liabilities 15715587

2733142

Equlty

Caplital and Reserves Atiribuiable to Equity
Halders of the Company

Share caplital (31 par value, 450,000 shares
sl horered, 480600 shares =med and AR WA
odtstan<mg st 31 March 2020 and 1019

A8 0

1587144

4467144

Retained earmings 6,198,530
Total Edquity 6.675 430
Total Liablkites and Equity 5 8580117

7200256

The anaeved noles from 1 bo % Fomm an integral pan of these fancial statements.

The financial stabements on pages & Lo |7 ware approved by tbe Board of Directors on & Aogust 2000 ancd asthocesed for s and

sigreed on s hehalf by

Company regisered nuember: 179332
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MNIKED AM CLOBAL CAYAMAN LTD
COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Mok 2030 w9
Asaris
Currenl Assels
Cash and cash equivalents ] 5628 383 © ER LR
Accounts recenable 2R 607 3,150 108
Axenaed inooene and propasd exponss T0125 71,250
Total Curienl Asiéls 555,117 TR0, 86
Mom - Currenl Assels
Investmen i subsidiary 3 | 1
Taotal Mon-Curvent Assels | 1
Total Assets 3 8550118 § T.RMLIET
Liabilities aml Eqity
Cirrent Lialilities
Accraed expenses and deferred mcone L1 4820 5 148 480
Accourts payable Tgan 12437
Amoints payable to group andenakings & 1.643 547 2462391
Total Current Liabdlijes 1,571,587 2,733,142
Equisy
Capital and Feserves Abribatatde o Equlty
Halders of the Company
Share capilal {31 par value, 420,000 shares mthorized,
A0, shares tssped and oulstsnding # 31 Mardh AR D ABT M)
2000 and 2009)
Retained eamings 6,198,531 3087045
Taolal Exuity 6678 53] 4467, 145
Total Liabikities and Equity 3 580,118 3§ T 200,287

The amnemied notex from 1 1o 8 form an mlegral pant of thess fmndcsl dalonmis.

The finuncisl statements on peges & Lo |7 were approved by ibe Board of Directors on & Aogust 20030 and ssthorised for isase and
signeed on its bohalf by

B tia]
W=t A

Company registered member: 129352
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MIERG AN GLOBAL CAYMAN LTI

ETATEMENT OF COMSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR EXNDED 31 MARCH 1020

Olpratiingg Hevenises
Investment management and adviscry fees fram third partics

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Sub-advisary fees with thind parties
Sub-advisory fees with group undertakings
Adwchit fees
(e operating and adminisirative expoises
Total oporaling exponscs

Operating Profit

Oilser [neome / (Expenses)
Cither ncome{expense), Net foreign echange gain (loss)
Total other expenses

Profit Before Incoane Tax
Income tax expense

Profil atftributabde o equlty holders of the parent

Cether Comprehensive lncome for the year
Total Compreliensive Incame for e vear

All the Group's operalins are chssifiod & continusng.

The anmeved mobes from 1 1o 8 Form an anlegral pan of these fmncial statememts.

Noke
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2020 2014
19213972 11335063
19213975 335065
{1 AB3.00Th (1,276,975

(15585538 {1 056.257)
(15, 764) 20571
CXEE 51000 (161 388}
(17,00 2,55 (20,51 5.850)
2.201,144 1815212
10,240 (3,758}
10,240 (53,790
2211346 1,765,417
2211384 1765417
22011384 17685417
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MIEED AM GLOBAL CAVAAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 1020

Nte {”,u':’l; ':;".‘r'r'.'lf:‘ Total
Balunce at | April 2014 T Wiaoh 8 2231ET s rouicrt
Net profit . 1765417 [I6sALT
Dividend pibd 5 i :
Balunce at 31 March 2619 5 W00 8 39sTidd s ademau
Nt prefit : 2211386 2211386
Dividend paid ;
Balanre a1 31 March 2020 5 w000 5 Ges 5 GeTESI0

Thie anmeved moles from 1 ta % form an integral pant of these finwncial statements
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MNIEK® AM CLOBAL CAYAMAN LTD
CONSOLIPATEDR CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 1020
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Ml 200 p L
Cash Fhows fram Gperating Activities
Operating Prafit 4 2,300,184 1819215
Addfusdmenis for
Nt foreign exchmnge loss 10,240 {53,758)
mlmﬂ cash flows before movements in working 2371386 L6417
Chamges In operaiing ssaets and labilites
Diecrease | (imcresse) in recenvables IAHED6 1,074,174
(Docrcase} | Increase in payables (B61_.555) (1.182,743)
et Cash Ceneraled from Opsrating Activitlies 1,689 457 1,656,548
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Dividends pakd -
et Cash from Flmamcing Activitles -
Mol Increase [m Cash and Cash Equivalends 1,689 457 1,655, 548
Cash mnd cush equivalo iz, beginming of the yoar 1058 98 2R 080
Cash and Cash Equivalents. End of the Year -1 625 388 1,508 928

The anmexwed modes from 1 ta & form an integral part of these fencie] shabements.
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MIKKG AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXDED M MARCH 1020

Naote 1= Genernl Infornoilion

Nikka AM Global Covman Lid *the Company”™) snd fis subsidiary g ether “the Oroup™) are incomorsied @ d domialed o the
Cayman Islamds. The wddress of the registered office is PO Box 300GT, Ugland House, South Churdh Street, Grand Cayman,
Cayman slands. The peincipal activities of the Group snd Company durimg e Year were the provision of mvestiment advice and
invesimant management services to thind paribes and other group membeas. These pon-dawory finsncial aaements have been
proparcd o asd the preparation of consolidated financial $alommis for the intomeedinle parent company_

Note ! — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles
The principal accounting palicies adopled are s out below,

Hasls of preparation

Thie Group and Company's financial statemenis have been prepared i accondamos with Inlem atiensl Fisancil Reponing Standards
as adopted by the European Union (IFRS5s as sdopted by the FU) and [FRIC interpretations applicsble fo companies reporting
mniber IFRS. As ml 31 March 20200 the Compuey bad adopted all IFR S mnd mterpretations that had been i sased by the Intomational
Accounting Stamdands Bosnd ("LASET) and Imtemations] Financial Reporting Inapretations Committes (“IFR1C), and endorsed
by the EL. The accounting policies et out below bave been appdicd consistenily 1o all periods presented m these financial
statenmvents. IFRSs comprise accounting sandards saed by the 1ARE snd its predocessor body as well as interpretations fssued by
the IFRIC and its predecessor bady.

1 preparing s set of fifncal Qalemnenls, he Coipany prepared plassble downsde soendfros sich as redudlon i reveniies
due 1o ghobal market declmes reaalting from the pasdemic. Managerment is satisfied thit the resuis of these scenanios supports the
going conoem basis of preparation.

Basls of consolidation

Subsacharmes are entitics conlrodled by the Group. Control exists when the Group bis the power 1o govern the financial snd operating
policies of an enlity =0 as 10 obtain beneffis from its activilies, In assessing contral, the Group takes into considertion potantial
valing rights that sre corantly exercisable. The aoquisition dale is the dale on which control is irmsferred 1o the soguirer, The
finencial stalemsents of subsidiarics are inchided m the conselidaed fnameial stabensenmts from the date thal control commienoes
wnlil the dale that control cesses. Losses applicable to the non-conirolling inlerests in 3 subsidiary are sllocmted to the nom-
comtrolling milereds evan if doing o caises the non-controlling intereds to bave a deficil balasee.

ew seoounding standards adopied
IFRS 16 Liease Accounting 14 dfective from | Jauasy 2019, The congany has go bases and tharefoee the atandarnd has no elfoc
o e company”s financial stalements.

Measurenent convention
The financial gstements bave been prepared under the hidonical oo convention

Esdlenates aied asamplions

The preparution of financial dalements requires managemenl to make edimabes and asasmplions that affect the wnoants reported
fior asscts and Habitkes as a1 the balance sheet date snd e ssnounts reponted for revenues snd expenses during the vear. The mature
of gst imation mesns that actual oubcomes could differ from those estimptes. The asumptions snd estimates, which are continuoushy
reviewed, are based on past experience arsd other factors, inchading expeciations regarding likely developments in the futare. Al
31 Bdarch 2020 aed 2019 there wers no mstenal camales o sssumplions.

Accounts receivable

Accoiints peceivable melude amounts due for mamagemenl, advisory amd performance Tees and ansounts due from cugomens and
athers. All accounts receivable sre repavable on demand or within one yesr. They are recorded in the balance sheet at codl, redisced
by appropoiate aflowmoes for ctimated imecoverabile smounds, and they are mieresd bearng.

Accounts payable

Avccounts paysble mchide smounts due for subsmbdisory services and parformance fees and nmonts due 1o vendors @nd oltsers.
Al cconinds payable are classafied according 1o the subsance of the contradctual amangonm! eeioied mto. They are pajable on
demmni or within one year and are reconded on the balance dheet at cosl, Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured,
inleredt free and hanve mo Fioed Lermas of repayment

Cashy aned cash equivalents

Cash and cash cqaivmlents comprse aish in banks and in hand end shord dem deposits with an ongmal matenty of three months
o less and forelgn asrencics bedd by the Group and Conspany, For the puspeses of the cash flow statement, cash el cash
equivabants conssst of cash and cash equivalents 25 defined sbove, net of cutstmeding bk overdrafts.

Operaling revenses

Operaling revenues inclide commissons and invedment mamagement], invedmenl adhasory and perf o fees. Oy
revenues ane mesaned ol the Fair value of e consideratson recerved o meceivable Tor sarvices wmlm Ih:nnrmd I:{l.lhkﬂf
busmess, et of discounts, il fees, VAT mnd other sales refated taxes,

IFES 15, Revenise from Comtracts with Customers replaced [AS 18 Revense and introdaced & five e approads 16 fevenue
recognition; 1) identifying the contract with the cudiomer; inp Ldﬂ:l'l'}tng the ]'u'ﬁmm obligaisons; iii} identify the comtract price
I associated revenoe, ivh allocate the consadoralion 1o the relevant porfs ¢ obligations, and %) recognising the revenue as the

performance obligations are salisfied. )
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MIKKG AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXDED M MARCH 1020

Thie Company has applied [FRS 15 retrospectively, bad has determined that dhere is no adpustmeni 1o the retamed camings a5 o |
Agril 2008, Compantive information has not bean sffected snd therefore no restatement is required.. The Company hasunderiaken
a review of its contmcts with customeers and concluded thal there tsno impadt on the wary in which it recognises its revenucs asno
clemnend of e revenue relles on estimates or B subgeet 10 reversal of significant restaicment.

Commisgons and mvestment managonant and advisory fees and sssocialed charges are rocogrised when the sorvioes concomed
are rendered. Irvesiment management and advisory fets are caleulated 45 aparcentage of asses under managemeanl. Commissons
are recognisod on @ rade dale basis, caboulated on o percentage of the sike. Porfformumoc focs are recognised i the paried in which
Ehey beconte dad and collecsble.

Operatlng expenses
Operaling expanses are sccounted for when they become payable

Dividends
Edquity dividends to the sharcholbder of the Group are recognised as u liability & the period during which they are declared and
appraved,

Foreign carremcies
The finctional and presontalional currency of the Growp and Comgasy i US dollars (5).

Trans&ctions in cusrencies othear than US doltars are reconded o1 the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the imnssations
Al cech balance sheet dafe, mmdary assds md lisbililies that are demomineted in forcign onmoncics sre retrmmsbabed af the mies
provailing on ke balmee sheel date. Mon-monetary assets and lisbilities carried a8 fuir value thal sre denominated m Foroign
currencics arc transiabed sl the rales prevailing at the dabe when Fair valae was delermined. Cains and losses ansing on reiranslation
are included in met profi or Joss for the perdod, eccept for exchange differences arising on non-monetary ssscts and liabilities where
the chamges in fuir vahae are recogoised dircctly inogaily.

Finamncisl indrumenls

IFRS 9. Financial Instruments replaced the classification and measurement contaimed in 1AS 3% Financial Instrumests: Recommition
anwd Measurement (1A% 39), In accordance with IFRS 9, the Company’s financial assets have been reclassified af amodised cost,
Taie value through cther comprehensive ineome of Far value tirough prolit or ks, The Company bas applicd IFRS # retrespectively,
with the Etention of including sy required adjustment 1o retained camings 25 3 | Apnl 2005 Comparstive mformation bas nol
been resated,

Thie vast majority of the Comgasy’s financial mstruments are cash and receivables which are messured af mmonised cost.

Followiag the Company's adoplion of IFRS 900 1 Apeil 200% ihe Company his evaluaied potential crodi Joses on 3l fnanaal
nsets Lhat are meenamred 8 mmortized cost. Faclors considered im determinmg whether o defanl is likely or posdble inclode whether
a pryment s overdue (and the lmgth of that ponod), sny known deterioration in the oredst quality’ of o clientGounterpaty or other
ismmes that coull sdversely affect 8 client’s'counterparty’s credit quality,

For financial assets where there i no known isaves affedting crodit quality, expooted onedil lesses are acalculated based on the bosass
that are expected tobe inourmed over o rollmg twelve-moeith peri od. Given the natuse of the Company's fimncial assets {i.e. mostly
cash l bank), there is & very bow credit ridc. The Company is also considering the use of money markel funds o increase
diversificatsom and further reduce credit risk

For any financial asscts where the contractual paymsent is moce than 30 days past doe. the defaull posilion is 1o axaeme an increise
in eredil sk However, defaalt levels in the padt have besn immatenial snd there were po foe receivaliles past die asat 31 Mafch
H2.

Invesimends in subsidiaries
Invedments im subsddiaries are stabed i tee parenl company®s bakande sheet ul cosd less any provigions for impammmil

Note 3 - Investment in Subsidiary
COMPANY

Ar 31 March 2000 and 31 March 201% ithe Company had an Evesiment of 31, In the opinion of the directors, the Companys
investment is not impaired, Details of the investment are as follows.

Sumbser, class and

Country of perceniaze of dhares
Invesler Incorpor ation Frincipal sctivity held b the Company
Cayinan 1 O share
PR AR oy | LI Islunds Ky e o 51, 100%

Note 4 — Taxation

Al 31 March 2020 and 3019, the tax rate applicalde to the Gromip and the Company's profils i (# becanse thore i no s levied
an Cayman kshinds companies.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXDED M MARCH 202

Mote 5 - Financial Risk Factors

The Group and Company’s financial instramnsents comprise cash mvd cash equivalents and receivable and payable balances thal
artse from i1s daily operalions. All cash and cash equivalnts are carmiod al ool which i considened o approvinmte to Fair vahse
ki 1o the shor term maturity of these financial mamments, The main risks associated with the Group snd Company’s financial
assete and Babilities s st oul below;

Credie risk

Credit nisk = defmed as the nsk of ol b due o o counterparty’s faihire o honour its obligation principally i relation 1o
trasissctions where the Growp of Company provides goods o services on defierred tenms and whare it invesds or doposils aumplus
cash, The Group or Company do nol belicve thal they are materially exposed 1o credit rid ns its smbes debéors are managed group
fimds amd therefore managomant end performance fecs receivable are govemod by its agreoments with these fimds. To mitigate
amy resadual risk of these aseta failing to be deliverad. the Group and Company ensure that the terms of these spreements in
relation (o payments of | & % mnd per ¢ Fres are adbvered o by moniloring its 3ged debbor analysis against the sgreed
servioe bevel agreamants.

The Group and Company sdopis the policy of dealmg with cadtomens of sppropmate credit history. For olber fimancial assets, the
Croanp v Congpany adapts the policy of dealimg with finaneial inituisons snd olber counterpantics with high credit rtings. There
are no finangial assets pasl dus amd £ or enpaired 258 31 March 2020 a0 2009, Tradk recervables are due o least quarerty, sad are
mormally seitled within 30 days of their due date. There ane no overdue trade reconvables ot the balmot shod date.

Further, with regard o band: doposits, the Group mnd Compamy only depessits money with approved cmmterpartses on agroed tams

Mar ki risk

Mwrkcet risk {or systemic risk) is defined as that risk which & common to an enlire class of assels or linbslitics whereby their walse
an Miduale simply boomse of ooonomic changes of otho ovents thal smpad large portions of the mwkd. The Group and
Company do pol believe that they are exposed o material market nisk as the assets the Group and Company mamage are held by
ared for the benefit of fumd hodders through sepamle lezal entitics.

Currency risk

Cusrency risk iz definod as the risk that the vahae of Group or Company assets md labilities denomisnated in currencies other than
the functional aerency of the Group or Company will change in value dae 1o movements in forcign exchange rates. The Group
and Company are exposed lo cumency risk misng from vanious currency exposures, primarily with resped to the Japaness Yen
(IPY). Sterling Pound (SBP) and Singapore Dollar {3000, The Oreup and Company™s fee indome is received mainty 1n USD and
JEY, A 31 March 2020 and 2009, had these comenci¢s strengthened'weakened by 10% againg the USD with all other vanshles
mchuding tax rabe being held constant, the Group and Company's prafil befiore tax for the fnancisl yoar would have boen
Bigheeribower ms @ el of currency transkalion losscsieains on e ranainmng cusrency denomisated cash balances, trade receivables
e pqyiilﬁ; bwy the below amounts.

Currency 2020 2009
(Rounded 1o nearest § thousandy
Y 5 3,000 5 54,000
GEP T, (e 05 DM
20D 15,000 h1ALLT
EUR 2,000 .

Liquidtity risk and Mnancial solvency risk

Liquadity risk is defined as the risk thet the Group or Compmy will not be sble to meeel its financial obligations as they fll due
The Group and Company’s appresch (o managing this risk B b enaare thal il has saffcient Hguidity to nseet i3 Habilnies when
e, both umder nonmisl amd sressed conditions

Capital managemeni
The Group and Comipsey capital position i% moailored on an oogomg bass 1o owsre that it is adequate. Thioe are no oxomally

impidid capital requiremionts.

Falr Yalue of Financlal Indrumenis
The fair values of fimncial assets and fiancial Babilitics that are tded in active markets are based on qeoled marke prices o
deaber price quodations. For all other financial insfruments, the Group ddamine fir valies usng other valistion tedmigaes.

For financial instnaments that trade mifrequently and have little price transparency. fair value is less obgective, and requires varying
degrees of judgement depending oo liquidity. conceniratim, uncetainty of market factors, pricing assumglions end ofher nisks
affecting the specific instrument.

The tehle below apalyees finmncil msnaments. into a fair value hiemrchy based on the vabaation techmique used 1o debermine fair
value

& Level 1 quooled prices funadpsted i netive markels for sdendicnl wssets or liabilities

® Level 20 inguits other than quoted prices included withim Level 1 ths are observable for the sssel o lisbility, either direcly
(i.e.. a5 prices) or indirecly {i.e., derived from prices)

®  Level 3t dmpuls for the mesel of liability that are nol based on observable mket data (unobservable mgauls),
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Year ended 3 March 2428 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal 2620
Ameli 5 3 5 5

Cash wed cash exquivalent LH18385 54628385
Accomls receivable TR51.607 2R51.607
Acerued meome and propaid expense 0125 oS
Lintsdlithes

Acerued expense and defomed imcome 148 X0 148 1)
Acdoumls payable TR0 TREM
Accoimls payabile 1o groap

- I . 16435407 L 1683 54T
Yoear ended 3 March 2009 Leved | Lawe] 3 Larvel 3 Tatal 3015
Asets H H 5 H

Cash wxd cash equivalms 1938508 - 1958938
Acooumnls receivable 090,108 - 3090108
Acernad meome and prepaid expense 71250 71250
Llubsilfibes

Acerued expense and deferred income 146480 146,480
Accoumlis payable 124271 124271
Accounts payable o groap

dndentikings 1AEL39] - 1462391

Al finamcial assds and lmbslitics we camod al histoncl cost. The fasr valuces of all finmncial msds and labglilios are smlar o
their carryimg vahpes owing to their short kema nasture.

Note 6 - Helated Party Transactions
Transections between the Group and Company snd relsted pariees are dischsed below:

Debilor as Credilor asal
Operating Operating at 31 March 31 March
Yoenr emded 31 March 2020 Hevenues Expemses (n) P (] 202 ihy
Nikko Aseet Mmagomml Amencas, Inc. 5 = 3 4 939 085 5 = 5 686,458
Hikko Assct Management Europe Lid. - 1,165335 - #1551
NWikko Assel Mmnagemant Co, Lid. - 6464 511 179,247 .
Nikko Assel Mamagement Asia Lid, - 1 500,198 - 157384
Hikko Aszel Mmagemanl Hong Kong - 115458 - 7000
Talsl 3 & 1601038 5 179,247 5 181
Drelslor as Credlilor as an
Operating Opirating al 31 March A1 March
Year ended 31 March 2019 Hevenies Expeises (a) 2019 (b} 2019}
Hikko Assel Mmnagemanl Americas, [nc. i = 3 4, 735,000 5 = -1 A5DTTS
Wikl Asset Management Europe Lid, - SATRSM - 1253, 147
Nikko Asct Mmnagemant Co, Led. - A3 30 = 07 671
Mikko Asset Management Asia Lid - TOTLE4R - S40.063
Nikko Asscl Managemant Hong Keng . 136,852 . 12.733
Talzl 3 3 I OEG55T 3 5 AT
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MNIERC AM GLOBAL CAVAMAN LTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXNDED 3 MARCH 2020

{a) Operaling experses paid (o relsted parties we payable under mvestment management agreements and are for fland
management servaces,

(b} The amounts cutdmding are unsecured and will be setibed in cash, No gusrmtees have been given or received. No provisions
laavie boan made for doubtful delbis in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

Nikko Assct Mmnzgomonl Amaricas, Ing., Mikke Asscl Management Ewrope Lid., Nikko Asect Managemond Asia Led md RNikke
Asud Management Hong Bong arc [ellow subssdiarics. Mikko Assa Managanant Co, Lid bx an imdiceet sharchalder of the
aforementioned subsdiaries,

Note T - Ultineie Holding Company

Thie Greap is & wholly owned sobsidiary of Nikko AM Global Holdings Lid, (s smmediste parent mndeniaking, a company which
is registered im England end Wales.

In the opinion of the direcbors the altimate parent company. and controllimg pany. ts Sumdteme Mian Test Holdings, Inc. a
company incorporsted in Jepn, Financial satensents for Sumitoma Mitsai Trust Holdings. Inc, are svailable 1o the public from

the Investor Relatsons Office, Financial Plasming Depariment, Samitoma Mitsai Trust Huldq:. Ime. L=dal, M:.l‘uurul.th Chiyoda-
ko, Tokoyo 100-8233, Japan. Copies of the anmeal repoet can be viewed or retrieved firom

Note § — Subsequent Events

Subsecuant 16 the sdstoment of finmaal postion dat e, there were no cvents which had m impsa on the consolidated and mdividual
Tknancisl sabensents of the Company.
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@
CIBC
CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2020 38,781,259 41 7,829
CIBC 1965
2020
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2019 12 1,010,000,000 1,088 1,740
(©))
UFJ
2020 405
(O]
2020 173 63
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®
LLC
Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC)
2019 12 658,000,000 708 9,292
@
90
@
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of NEUB Corporate Hybrid

Securities Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the “ Fund” ),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February
29, 2020, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter

collectively referred to as “ financial statements”

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund as of February 29, 2020, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended,
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

June 26, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (* the company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2020, the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related
notes including the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons
set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 02 April 2020.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company’ s financial
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the
date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’ s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the company’ s financial resources or
ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the company will continue in
operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director’ s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material

misstatements in the other information.
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Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

06 August 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of NEUB Corporate Hybrid

Securities Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the “ Fund” ),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February
28, 2019, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter

collectively referred to as “ financial statements”

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund as of February 28, 2019, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended,
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

June 28, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (the “ Company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2019 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related notes including
the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons set out in note
1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (* ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms

of our engagement letter dated 3 May 2019. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and

appropriate basis for our opinion.

The impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial
statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and related
disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of
these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the company’ s future prospects and
performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are
subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We
applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the company’ s future
prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible
future implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the group or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the group and the company’ s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at
least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the group’ s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the group and company’ s financial
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resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these

respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the group will continue in operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director’ s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.
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Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL
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